
FULL COUNCIL 
  

  
 
 

 

Please note that this Meeting will be recorded for subsequent broadcast via the 
Authority’s Internet Site.  

  
The images and sound recording may also be used for training purposes 

within the Authority. 
 

All attendees could possibly be in view of the camera and by attending you are 
consenting to being filmed and to the use of those images and sound 

recordings being used as outlined above. 
 

 

 
Dear Sir/Madam 
 
You are hereby summoned to attend a REMOTE MEETING - MICROSOFT TEAMS 
Meeting of the Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council to be held on Wednesday, 
4th November, 2020 at 5.30 pm being a Meeting for the following purposes. 
 
Any reference documents referred to but not published as part of this agenda can be 
found on the Council’s website or intranet under Background Papers 

 

 
A G E N D A 

 

1. Apologies for Absence   

2. Declarations of Interest   

 Members are reminded of their personal responsibility 
to declare any personal and prejudicial interest in 
respect of matters contained in this agenda in 
accordance with the provisions of the Local 
Government and Finance Act 1992 relating to Council 
Tax, the Local Government Act 2000, the Council’s 
Constitution and the Members Code of Conduct 
 
 

 



Note: 
 

(a) Members are reminded that they must identify 
the item number and subject matter that their 
interest relates to and signify the nature of the 
personal interest and 

 
(b) Where Members withdraw from a Meeting as a 

consequence of the disclosure of a prejudicial 
interest they must notify the Chair when they 
leave 

 

Presentation 

3. Presentation - The Cyfarthfa Plan 2020-2040   

 To receive a Presentation by Ian Richie Architects. 
 

 

4. The Cyfarthfa Plan 2020 – 2040   

 To consider report of the Interim Deputy Chief 
Executive 
 

5 - 10 

Minutes 

5. Minutes of Previous Meeting(s)   

 To approve as accurate the Minutes of the following 
Meetings: 
 

 

5.a   Full Council: 07/10/2020 11 - 18 

5.b   Cabinet: 07/10/2020 19 - 20 

5.c   Rights of Way: 30/09/2020 21 - 22 

5.d   Planning, Regulatory and Licensing: 21/10/2020 23 - 26 

5.e   Audit: 12/10/2020 27 - 30 

5.f   Scrutiny: Governance, Performance, Business 
Change and Corporate Services: 22/09/2020 

31 - 34 

5.g   Scrutiny: Governance, Performance, Business 
Change and Corporate Services: 13/10/2020 

35 - 38 

5.h   Scrutiny: Social Services: 15/09/2020 39 - 42 

5.i   Scrutiny: Social Services: 06/10/2020 43 - 46 



5.j   Scrutiny: Neighbourhood Services, Planning and 
Countryside: 28/09/2020 

47 - 50 

5.k   Scrutiny: Regeneration and Public Protection: 29/09 
2020 

51 - 54 

5.l   Scrutiny: Learning and LGES: 21/09/2020 55 - 58 

5.m   Scrutiny: Learning and LGES: 19/10/2020 59 - 62 

5.n   Scrutiny: Regeneration and Public Protection: 
20/10/2020 

63 - 66 

Notice(s) of Motion 

6. Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council's Response to 
the Current Financial Assistance for the Business 
Community  

67 - 68 

Committee Report(s) 

7. Gully Sucker Business Case   

 To consider report of the Chief Officer Neighbourhood 
Services 
 

69 - 74 

Information Report(s) 

8. School Transport – Edwardsville School   

 To receive report of the Interim Deputy Chief Executive 
 

75 - 78 

9. Period Poverty   

 To receive report of the Chief Officer Education 
 

79 - 82 

10. To deal with any other urgent business or 
correspondence  

 

11. To receive communications from Her/ His Worship the 
Mayor  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

By order of the Mayor 
 

ELLIS COOPER 
INTERIM CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

 
 

If you would prefer a copy of this agenda in another language please contact 
democratic@merthyr.gov.uk or telephone 01685 725284 

mailto:democratic@merthyr.gov.uk


Civic Centre, Castle Street,  
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN 

 

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 
 

 
 

FULL COUNCIL REPORT 
 

 

 

 
 
 
To:  Mayor, Ladies and Gentlemen 
 

The Cyfarthfa Plan 2020 - 2040 

 
 

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 On the 17th July 2019, Cabinet approved the appointment of world-renowned 

architects Ian Ritchie Architects to create the masterplan to help turn Merthyr Tydfil’s 
Cyfarthfa heritage area into an industrial heritage experience of international 
significance. 

 
1.2  The project commission required that the masterplan will identify and define the brief 

for a number of large and smaller projects to be implemented over the next 1 to 20 
years.   

 
1.3  The Cyfarthfa Plan is a 20 year strategic document that will reveal the global 

importance of Merthyr Tydfil’s industrial past and work in harmony with its natural 
environment to transform the Cyfarthfa Heritage area.   

 
1.4  The Plan is the result of extensive consultation and involvement with the public and 

key stakeholders in Merthyr Tydfil held over a 5 month period.  This led to the 
creation of three strategic themes which have translated into more than 70 different 
projects.  

 
1.5  A 100ha park, formed around the confluence of the Taff and Taf Fechan rivers, will 

expand on the existing 65 hectares to create a ‘Greater Cyfarthfa Park’ and 
encompassing some of the most important heritage assets including Cyfarthfa 
Castle, Cyfarthfa Ironworks and Furnaces, Pont-Y-Cafnau Bridge and Pandy Farm. 

 
1.6  The Plan prioritises projects which are central to its ethos and integrity (‘must do’), 

those that are strongly recommended for the Plan to reach its full potential (‘should 
do’) and suggested projects to enhance and optimise the Plan (‘could do’).   

Date Written 20th October 2020 ** 

Report Author Zoe Thomas / Chris Long  

Service Area Community Regeneration  

Exempt/Non Exempt Non Exempt  

Committee Date 4th November 2020  

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



 
1.7  This is a holistic, nuanced plan, designed to deliver transformative change over a 20 

year timescale.   
 

2.0 RECOMMENDATIONS that 
 
2.1 The Cyfarthfa Plan 2020 – 2040 be approved.  
 
2.2  The actions identified in Section 5 of this report be approved.  
 
 

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 On 21st October 2017 at Cyfarthfa Castle, Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council 

(MTCBC), the Design Commission for Wales (DCFW) and the Welsh School of 
Architecture at Cardiff University convened a multidisciplinary team to scope the 
possibilities within the town and surrounding landscape in a bold visioning exercise 
that sought ways of making of Merthyr’s heritage assets something greater than the 
sum of its parts, underlining its true international significance.  

  
3.2   The charrette – an intense day of ideas generation – considered how Cyfarthfa 

Castle, its extended landscape and built heritage might become an international 
quality visitor destination and experience, better promoting its already palpable 
sense of place. It considered new ways in which these central assets could be 
connected to other assets throughout the town and beyond to catalyse regeneration 
and tourism, maximise impact and return real public benefit.  

  
3.3  The findings of the report highlighted four strategically integrated strands:  
  

a) A cathedral for our industrial heritage  
b) Weaving a connected landscape  
c) Beyond Cyfarthfa – Beyond Merthyr  
d) A year-round framework for events  

  
3.4 The charrette report recommended the pursuit of these strands and outlines the 

necessary resources, timescales and mechanisms required for them to realise their 
full potential.  

  
3.5  On 6th June 2018, the Regeneration Team along with advisors and the Chief 

Executive of the DCFW presented a report to Full Council on the charrette findings 
and the following recommendations were approved:  

  
- To establish a small working group to progress the ‘Crucible’ concept and projects.  
 
- To establish a task and finish group to undertake discussions as part of an internal 
design charrette.  
 
 - To establish an interim working group to explore the establishment of an 
appropriate development vehicle to take the programme forward.   
 

Page 6



- To identify a potential location for a new development vehicle to be based   
 
- To undertake community consultation and identify engagement with key 
stakeholders.   
 
- To review existing HLF applications for Cyfarthfa.  - To explore the establishment of 
links with major London based Charities and Trusts  

  
3.6   Following approval of these recommendations a working group was established 

between MTCBC and DCFW the ‘Crucible Working Group’   The first aim of the 
group was to appoint a high performing, creative team to develop a ‘framework’ upon 
which the development of the Cyfarthfa Heritage Area will be based.  This will 
become the Cyfarthfa Heritage Area Masterplan resulting from the Crucible Report.   

 
3.7 On the 17th July 2019, Cabinet approved the appointment of world-renowned 

architects Ian Ritchie Architects to create the masterplan to help turn Merthyr Tydfil’s 
Cyfarthfa heritage area into an industrial heritage centre of international significance. 

 
3.8 The award was for a 12 month period to develop the Plan.  The issued brief required 

that the masterplan will identify and define the brief for a number of large and smaller 
projects to be implemented over the next one to 20 years.  The outcome will play an 
important role in setting a standard for design excellence in future development.  It 
will capture the imagination to attract investment and visitor numbers and maintain 
local support. 

 

4.0 THE CYFARTHFA PLAN  
 
4.1 The Cyfarthfa Plan is a 20 year strategic plan that will reveal the global importance of 

Merthyr Tydfil’s industrial past and work in harmony with its nature to transform the 
Cyfarthfa area.  The project will grow in parallel with the lives of the town’s youngest 
generation as they grow into adults.  

 
4.2  The Plan is the result of extensive consultation and involvement with the public and 

key stakeholders in Merthyr Tydfil held over a 5 month period.  This led to the 
creation of three strategic themes which have translated into more than 70 different 
projects: 

 
- History and heritage  
- Natural environment 
- Contemporary creativity  

 
4.3  A 100ha park, formed around the confluence of the Taff and Taf Fechan rivers, will 

expand on the existing 65 hectares to create a ‘Greater Cyfarthfa Park’ and 
encompassing some of the most important heritage assets including Cyfarthfa 
Castle, Cyfarthfa Ironworks and Furnaces, Pont-Y-Cafnau Bridge and Pandy Farm.   

 
4.4  It is envisaged that Cyfarthfa Caste will be developed into a museum of national and 

international importance.  The landscape will be the backdrop against which all the 
major assets of the plan will be realised.  It is envisaged that the Castle and Park will 

Page 7



be developed incrementally over the next 20 years and punctuated with celebrations 
of major historic anniversaries.  

 
4.5  The Cyfarthfa Plan has been split into four phases across two decades: 
 

- The first ten years – 2020-2031 will include: 
 
 Phase 1: the Castle Projects  
 Phase 2: the Iron Way Projects 
 

- The next ten years – 2031-2040 will include: 
 
 Phase 3: the Creative Arts Projects 
 Phase 4: Tertiary Education Projects  

 
- The 100ha park weaves throughout all phases of the Plan.   

 
4.6  The Plan prioritises projects which are central to its ethos and integrity (‘must do’), 

those that are strongly recommended for the Plan to reach its full potential (‘should 
do’) and suggested projects to enhance and optimise the Plan (‘could do’).   

 
4.7  Over 70 potential projects have been identified for the Cyfarthfa Plan.  The projects 

presented in the Plan have been selected as they: 
 

- Are central to the ethos of the Plan and aim to have a transformative effect on 
Merthyr Tydfil.  

- Are the result of extensive consultation with the public and key stakeholders in 
Merthyr Tydfil.  The Cyfarthfa Plan is a people-centred plan. 

- Reconnect the historic landscape of the Cyfarthfa Ironworks and Cyfarthfa Park 
- Provide restored, new or renewed uses for key historic assets. 
- Build on the current assets of the Castle’s collection and education and outreach 

programmes, while combining materials from many other collections and utilising 
best modern display principles and technologies.  

- Are adaptable and resilient in as much as they can be implemented as and when 
resources allow while remaining part of a larger and coherent Plan.  

 
4.8  This is a holistic, nuanced plan, designed to deliver transformative change over a 20 

year timescale.  Its benefits are real and tangible and ultimately demonstrable.  The 
likely economic impact can be addressed from two perspectives.  A more traditional, 
tourism-led and visitor driven economic impact and through the construction of 
various capital projects creating jobs and increasing spend.  

 

5.0 NEXT STEPS  
 
5.1  Once ‘The Cyfarthfa Plan’ has been endorsed by full Council, Merthyr Tydfil CBC in 

conjunction with Geraint Talfan Davies, will formally launch the Plan.  This will 
include a press launch but also further opportunities to engage a range of 
stakeholders through a series of events and meetings.  

 

Page 8



5.2 The Cyfarthfa Working Group will continue to meet monthly to discuss next steps in 
relation to the delivery of the Plan and development of key projects.  A series of ‘task 
and finish groups’ will be established to support key actions.  A Memorandum of 
Understanding will be established between the Council, SPV and Merthyr Tydfil 
Leisure Trust outlining communication protocols and roles and responsibilities to 
manage relationships during the development period for the Plan.  

 
5.3  The establishment of the SPV will continue and will seek to secure revenue to 

appoint officers to deliver on the Plan.  
 

6.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
6.1 There are currently no financial implications on the authority.  As projects develop 

further reports will be presented to committee outlining any future financial 
implication.  

 
 

7.0 INTEGRATED IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
 
 Positive 

Impacts 

Negative 

Impacts 

Not 

Applicable  

1. Merthyr Tydfil Well-being 

Objectives 

  

 4 of 4 0 of 4 0 of 4 

2. Sustainable Development 

Principles - How have you 

considered the five ways of 

working: 

 Long term 

 Prevention 

 Integration 

 Collaboration 

 Involvement 

 

5 of 5 0 of 5 0 of 5 

3. Protected Characteristics (including 

Welsh Language) 

 

2 of 10 0 of 10 8 of 10 

4. Biodiversity 

 
1 of 1 0 of 1 0 of 1 

Summary: 
 
The main positive impacts are that the projects identified The Cyfarthfa Plan will support Well-

Page 9



being Objectives and Sustainable Development Principles through targeting economic growth, 
the protection of key heritage assets and the development of the landscape.  The project will 
have a positive effect on the economy, socially and on heritage.    
 
No negative impacts have been identified. 
 

 
 
 
ALYN OWEN 
DEPUTY CHIEF EXECUTIVE  

COUNCILLOR GERAINT THOMAS 
PORTFOLIO MEMBER FOR 

REGENERATION AND PUBLIC 
PROTECTION  

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location 

 
 

  

 

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution?  
 

No 

 
Consultation has been undertaken with the Corporate Management Team in respect 

of each proposal(s) and recommendation(s) set out in this report. 
 

Page 10



 
 

MINUTES OF MEETING 
 

FULL COUNCIL MEETING 
 
 

WEDNESDAY, 7TH OCTOBER, 2020 
 
 
PRESENT:  
 

Councillors   H Barrett (Chair) 
                      M Colbran (Vice-Chair) 
 

 Councillors   A Barry, B Carter, D Chaplin, C Davies, J Davies, 
L Davies, E Galsworthy, K Gibbs, D Hughes, D Isaac, S Jago, 
C T Jones, D Jones, H R Jones, M Jones, G Lewis, L Mytton, 
K O'Neill, G Richards, D Roberts, T Rogers, D Sammon, 
T Skinner, W R Smith, J Thomas, G Thomas, S Thomas and 
C Tovey 

  
 Officers: 

C Kennedy (Head of Legal and Governance Services - 
Monitoring Officer), E Cooper (Interim Chief Executive), S Jones 
(Head of Finance), L Curtis Jones (Chief Officer (Social 
Services)), S Walker (Chief Education Officer), J Jones (Chief 
Officer Neighbourhood Services), A Owen (Interim Deputy Chief 
Executive), F Donnelly (H R Manager), C Dinham 
(Communications, Consultation and Engagement Manager), 
A Taylor (Head of Democratic Services), A Stephens (Cabinet 
Policy Officer), D Chaffe (Highways and Fleet Manager), C Long 
(Economic Development & Strategic Tourism Manager), 
C Morris (Highways & Engineering) and Z Thomas (European & 
External Funding Support Officer), D Jones (IAS) 
 
Outside Bodies: 

 James Brown (Managing Director – The Urbanists) 
 

 M Morgan* (Democratic Services Officer), M Edmunds 
(Democratic Services Officer) and M Phillips (Democratic 
Services Officer) 

 

Page 11

Agenda Item 5a



 
 
 
 

 

   

ITEM 
NO. 

AGENDA MATTER DECISION 

Minutes Silence 
 

The Council observed a Minutes Silence for Helen Thomas, former Local Authority Councillor, 
a Member of the Bedlinog and Trelewis Community Council and the Standards Committee 
who had sadly passed away. 
 

87   Apologies for Absence Apologies for absence were received from Councillor J 
Amos, Councillor C Barry and Councillor I Thomas. 

88   Declarations of Interest Councillor L Mytton Declared her Interest in Item 7 – The 
Cyfarthfa Foundation as she was nominated as a Director 
and Trustee. 
 
Councillor G Thomas Declared his Interest in Item 7 – The 
Cyfarthfa Foundation as he was nominated as a Director 
and Trustee. 

89   Merthyr Strategic 
Valley Hub: 
Placemaking Plan 
2019-2035 

The Chair welcomed James Brown, Managing Director The 
Urbanists to the Meeting. 
 
James Brown then made a Presentation to the Members in 
relation to the ‘Merthyr Strategic Valley Hub: Placemaking 
Plan 2019-2035’ and the work that had been undertaken on 
behalf of the Council over the past eighteen months and 
gave further details in relation to: 
 

 Working Progress 

 Core Ambitions 

 The Master Plan 

 Links to Post Covid Recovery 

 Summer 2019 

 Analysis / Future Proofing 

 Work to Date – Work Completed – Placemaking 
Plan – Delivery Plan 

 Life in 2035 – Vision for the Future – Thinking about 
shifting forces 

 Ready for the Future – The world in 2035 – Predict 
– Respond – Adapt 

 Core Ambitions 

 The Recipe for Success 

 Tourism Capital of the Valleys and Beacons – 
Centre of adventure – Tourism – Industrial – 
Political Heritage 

 A Low Carbon Town 

 Low energy use – Renewable Energy – Low 
Environmental Impact – Adaptability 

 A Destination for Services 

 High quality Public Services 

 A Waterside Town 

 Opportunity to be a better Waterside Town – 
Location on the banks of the River Taff 

 A Smart Town 

Page 12



 
 
 
 

 

   

 A Digital fluent Town 

 An inclusive engaging public realm 

 A Town with an inviting public realm 

 People feel safe, welcomed and uplifted 

 A Resilient Town 

 A wide variety of activities – Resilient to change- 
Able to adapt to a rapid changing world 

 The Master Plan 

 Town – A series of themed areas 

 Northern Gateway – Southern Gateway – Merthyr 
Waterside – St Tydfil’s Centre- Interchange 
Corridor – Other projects 

 Links to Post Covid Recovery 

 Threats 

 Economic impact post furlough 

 Communities lack resilience 

 Opportunities 

 Homes and Neighbourhoods 
 
Councillor K O’Neill Leader of the Council then thanked Mr 
Brown for the Presentation. 
 
The Mayor also thanked Mr Brown for attending. 

90   Merthyr Strategic 
Valley Hub: 
Placemaking Plan 
2019– 2035 

Resolved that: 
 

(a) The content of the Merthyr Strategic Valley Hub: 
Placemaking Plan 2019-2035 be approved 

(b) The actions identified in Section 5 of the report be 
approved  

91   Minutes of Previous 
Meeting(s) 

Council approves as accurate (subject to any amendments) 
the Minutes of the following Meetings: 

91a   AGM: 09/09/2020 Resolved that: 
 
The Minutes of the Annual General Meeting (AGM) held 9 
September 2020 be accepted as a correct record. 

91b   Full Council: 
26/02/2020 

Resolved that: 
 
The Minutes of the Full Council Meeting held 26 February 
2020 be accepted as a correct record. 

91c   Full Council: 
04/03/2020 

Resolved that: 
 
The Minutes of the Full Council Meeting held 4 March 2020 
be accepted as a correct record. 

91d   Cabinet: 26/02/2020 Resolved that: 
 
The Minutes of the Cabinet Meeting held 26 February 2020 
be accepted as a correct record. 

91e   Cabinet: 04/03/2020 Resolved that: 
 
The Minutes of the Cabinet Meeting held 4 March 2020 be 

Page 13



 
 
 
 

 

   

accepted as a correct record. 

91f   Cabinet: 15/07/2020 Resolved that: 
 
The Minutes of the Cabinet Meeting held 15 July 2020 be 
accepted as a correct record. 

91g   Cabinet: 16/09/2020 Resolved that: 
 
The Minutes of the Cabinet Meeting held 16 September 
2020 be accepted as a correct record. 

91h   Licensing Committee: 
27/02/2020 

Resolved that: 
 
The Minutes of the Licensing Committee held 27 February 
2020 be accepted as a correct record. 

91i   Licensing Committee: 
24/06/2020 

Resolved that: 
 
The Minutes of the Licensing Committee held 24 June 2020 
be accepted as a correct record. 

91j   Audit: 09/03/2020 Resolved that: 
 
The Minutes of the Audit Committee held 9 March 2020 be 
accepted as a correct record. 

91k   Audit: 03/08/2020 Resolved that: 
 
The Minutes of the Audit Committee held 3 August 2020 be 
accepted as a correct record. 

91l   Standards: 24/01/2020 Resolved that: 
 
The Minutes of the Standards Committee held 24 January 
2020 be accepted as a correct record. 

91m   SACRE: 10/03/2020 Resolved that: 
 
The Minutes of SACRE held 10 March 2020 be accepted as 
a correct record. 

91n   Scrutiny: Governance, 
Performance, Business 
Change and Corporate 
Services: 25/02/2020 

Resolved that: 
 
The Minutes of the Governance, Performance, Business 
Change and Corporate Services Scrutiny Committee held 
25 February 2020 be accepted as a correct record. 

91o   Scrutiny: Regeneration 
and Public Protection: 
03/03/2020 

Resolved that: 
 
The Minutes of the Regeneration and Public Protection 
Scrutiny Committee Meeting held 3 March 2020 be 
accepted as a correct record. 

91p   Scrutiny: Social 
Services: 21/01/2020 

Resolved that: 
 
The Minutes of the Social Services Scrutiny Committee held 
21 January 2020 be accepted as a correct record. 

Page 14



 
 
 
 

 

   

91q   Scrutiny: Social 
Services: 10/03/2020 

Resolved that: 
 
The Minutes of the Social Services Scrutiny Committee held 
10 March 2020 be accepted as a correct record. 

91r   Scrutiny: Learning and 
LGES: 06/01/2020 

Resolved that: 
 
The Minutes of the Learning and LGES Scrutiny Committee 
held 6 January 2020 be accepted as a correct record. 

91s   Scrutiny : Learning and 
LGES: 24/02/2020 

Resolved that: 
 
The Minutes of the Learning and LGES Scrutiny Committee 
held 24 February 2020 be accepted as a correct record 

92   Agile And Home 
Working Policy 

Councillor A Barry referred to the ‘Agile and Homeworking 
Policy’ report and moved the recommendation at Paragraph 
2.1 of the report.  
 
Questions were then raised in relation to the Policy and 
Councillor A Barry stated that he would welcome Scrutiny 
looking at the Policy. 
 
Resolved that: 
 
The Agile and Homeworking Policy be approved. 

93   The Cyfarthfa 
Foundation 

Councillor L Mytton and Councillor G Thomas having 
Declared their Interest in this Item left the Meeting. 
 
Councillor K O’Neill led the Members through ‘The Cyfarthfa 
Foundation’ report and moved the recommendation at 
Paragraph 2.1 of the report.  This motion was then 
seconded. 
 
Councillor D Roberts advised that the Labour Group agreed 
with the project but felt it appropriate for a Labour Group 
Member to sit as a Director and Trustee. 
 
Therefore, he proposed that Councillor Gareth Lewis be 
added to the nominations for Director and Trustee. 
 
Carys Kennedy then advised that it had been agreed at 
Council in September that there be two nominations and 
therefore an extra Member nomination could not be made. 
 
Councillor D Roberts then proposed that Councillor G Lewis 
be appointed instead of either Councillor G Thomas or 
Councillor L Mytton as he felt there should be Labour 
representation on the Board.  This motion was then 
seconded. 
 
Councillor G Lewis having been nominated for appointment 
to the Board Declared his Interest in the Item and left the 
Meeting. 
 
Councillor K O’Neill then advised that the recommendation 
reflected a gender balance and Labour did not have a 

Page 15



 
 
 
 

 

   

female Councillor. Councillor G Thomas was also the 
Cabinet Portfolio lead Member. 
 
Councillor K O’Neill concurred that the Labour Group were 
supportive and guaranteed regular updates. 
 
A vote was then taken on the amendment that Councillor G 
Lewis and Councillor G Thomas or Councillor L Mytton 
(One Independent Member and One Labour Member) be 
appointed as Directors and Trustees and this amendment 
fell.  
 
A vote was then taken on recommendation 2.1 in the report 
and it was 
 
Resolved that: 
 
Councillor Geraint Thomas and Councillor Lisa Mytton be 
appointed as Directors and Trustees. 

94   Gulley Sucker 
Business Case 

Councillor D Hughes referred the Members to the ‘Gully 
Sucker Business Case’ report and proposed the 
recommendations at Paragraphs 2.1 and 2.2 of the report.  
This motion was then seconded. 
 
Questions were then raised on the report by the Members 
and were responded to in detail by the Officers and 
Councillor D Hughes. 
 
Councillor B Carter then moved the following amendment to 
the recommendation: 
 

(a) That Council Lease Hire a new Gully Sucker to 
bring the Service back in House be approved 

(b) That Council also source and appoint a Contractor 
with immediate effect to operate the Gully Sucker 
be approved 

(c) A further report be presented to Council at the 4 
November 2020 Meeting giving a report on 
progress and a Cost Analysis 

 
This amendment was then seconded. 
 
Further debate then ensued and a vote was taken on the 
amendment and the amendment fell. 
 
A vote was then taken on recommendations 2.1 and 2.2 in 
the report and it was 
 
Resolved that: 
 

(a) The Business Case attached to the report and 
Option 3 (In House Gully Service – Lease Hire) be 
approved 

(b) A further report be presented to Council detailing 
the full costs of the approved Option 

95   Merthyr Tydfil Adult 
Community Learning 

Resolved that: 
 

Page 16



 
 
 
 

 

   

(MTACL) Partnership 
Future Delivery and 
Welsh Government 
Funding 2020/21 

(a) The Delivery Framework Appendix B be approved 
(b) The financial implications be noted and the 

increase in the Net Budget to reflect the 
uncontrollable growth caused through Grant 
changes by Welsh Government be approved 

(c) A full cost recovery approach for supporting and 
processing accredited outcomes on behalf of 
partners / services be implemented 

96   MTCBC Annual 
Scrutiny Report 2019-
2020 

Resolved that: 
 
The report for Information be received. 

97   Consultation 
Responses - 
Amendment of 
Opening Times of Day 
Service Provision 

Resolved that: 
 
The report for Information be received. 

98   Annual Report on 
Social Services 2019-
2020 

Resolved that: 
 
The report for Information be received. 

99   Update on Young 
People’s Participation:  
Merthyr Tydfil Borough 
Wide Youth Forum 
(MTBWYF) and Office 
of Youth Mayor 

Resolved that: 
 
The report for Information be received. 

100   To deal with any other 
urgent business or 
correspondence 

The Mayor advised that there was no business deemed 
urgent. 

101   To receive 
communications from 
Her/His  Worship the 
Mayor 

No Communications were received from His Worship the 
Mayor. 

 
 

 

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 
 
 
 

MINUTES OF MEETING 
 

CABINET MEETING 
 

WEDNESDAY, 7TH OCTOBER, 2020 
 

 
PRESENT:  
 

Councillors    K O'Neill (Chair) 
                      L Mytton (Vice-Chair)  
 

 Councillors   A Barry, C Davies, D Hughes and G Thomas 
  

Officers 
E Cooper (Interim Chief Executive), C Kennedy (Head of Legal 
and Governance Services - Monitoring Officer), A Owen (Interim 
Deputy Chief Executive), L Curtis Jones (Chief Officer (Social 
Services)), S Walker (Chief Education Officer), J Jones (Chief 
Officer Neighbourhood Services), S Jones (Head of Finance), 
F Donnelly (H R Manager), C Dinham (Communications, 
Consultation and Engagement Manager), M Price (Revenue 
Officer) and A Stephens (Cabinet Policy Officer) 
 

 M Phillips (Democratic Services Officer) and M Edmunds* 
(Democratic Services Officer) 

 
 
In order to capture the presence of all attendees, including those experiencing 
technical difficulties, the attendance sheet created by Microsoft Teams has been 
published as a separate supplement alongside these minutes. 
 
 

Decisions made will come into force 5 working days after publication, unless it 
is subject to a call-in by a Scrutiny Committee 

 
 
 

ITEM 
NO. 

AGENDA MATTER DECISION 

79   Apologies for absence No apologies for absence were received. 

80   Declarations of Interest No declarations of interest were received. 

Page 19

Agenda Item 5b



 
 
 
 
   

81   Dog Fouling Public 
Spaces Protection 
Order 

Resolved that: 
 

a) Statutory and public consultation be undertaken on 
the proposal to introduce a Borough Wide PSPO 
requiring a person in charge of a dog in a public 
space to remove all faeces deposited by the dog 
forthwith be approved. 

82   Care Inspectorate 
Wales Performance 
Review April 2019 to 
March 2020 

Resolved that: 
 

a) The contents of the report be noted. 

83   Inspection Report – Ty 
Bargoed Newydd 

Resolved that: 
 

a) The contents of the report be noted. 

 

CLOSED SESSION 
 

84   Sundry Debt Write Off 
Report 

Resolved that: 
 

a) The Recommendation as contained within the 
Report be accepted. 

85   Debt Write Off Report Resolved that: 
 

a) The Recommendation as contained within the 
Report be accepted. 

 

RE-OPENED SESSION 
 

86   Any Other Business 
Deemed Urgent by the 
Chair 

No other business was deemed urgent by the Chair. 

 
 

 

Page 20



 
 

MINUTES OF MEETING 
 

RIGHTS OF WAY MEETING 
 

WEDNESDAY, 30TH SEPTEMBER, 2020 
 
 
PRESENT:  
 

Councillors:   C Tovey (Chair) 
                      M Colbran (Vice-Chair) 
 

 Councillors:   C T Jones, D Sammon and S Thomas 
  

Officers: 
 G Morgan (Solicitor), C Jones (Rights of Way Officer), B Jones 

(Rights of Way Project Officer) and A Evans (Community 
Regeneration Officer) 

  
 M Morgan (Democratic Services Officer) and M Edmunds 

(Democratic Services Officer) 
 

ITEM 
NO. 

AGENDA MATTER DECISION 

67   Apologies for absence No apologies for absence were received as all Members 
were present. 

68   Declarations of Interest No Declarations of Interest were made. 

69   Highways Act 1980 - 
Section 26 

The Chair referred the Committee to the ‘Highways Act 
1980 – Section 26’ report. 
 
Cheryl Jones then led the Committee through the report. 
 
The following questions were then raised by the Committee: 
 

 Request to see a Plan of the exact route 

 The need to be clear in relation to the Bridleway  

 How could members of the public access the area 
without problems 

 Where could members of the public park vehicles 

 Letter sent from the Merthyr Tydfil Heritage Trust 

 West Merthyr Public Inquiry 

Page 21

Agenda Item 5c



 
 
 
 
   

 Ownership of the land 

 Paragraph 3.8 – Further explanation requested 

 Surface of the Bridleway – Safety and convenience 
for anyone to be able to use 

 
Detailed responses were then given by the Officers in 
relation to the questions raised. 
 
After consideration it was 
 
Resolved that: 
 

(a) An Order(s) be made under Section 26 of the 
Highways Act 1980 to create a Bridleway from the 
Taff Trail, Upper Abercanaid to the entrance to the 
Abernant Tunnel, shown by a bold broken line and 
dashed A – B and C – D on the Plan attached to 
the report 

(b) That in the event of no objections being received, 
the Order(s) be confirmed and in the event of 
objections being received the Order be sent to the 
Planning Inspectorate for determination. 

70   Any other Business 
deemed urgent by the 
Chair 

The Chair advised that there was no business deemed 
urgent. 

 
 

 

Page 22



 
 

MINUTES OF MEETING 
 

PLANNING, REGULATORY 
AND LICENSING MEETING 

 
WEDNESDAY, 21ST OCTOBER, 2020 

 
 
PRESENT:  
 

Councillors    C Tovey (Chair) 
                       M Colbran (Vice-Chair) 
 

 Councillors H Barrett, D Chaplin, E Galsworthy, K Gibbs, 
C T Jones, G Lewis, D Sammon, J Thomas and S Thomas 

  
  

Officers: 
J Jones (Chief Officer Neighbourhood Services), C Watkins 
(Planning officer) G Morgan (Solicitor), M Phillips* (Democratic 
Services Officer) and M Edmunds (Democratic Services Officer) 

  
  
 

ITEM 
NO. 

AGENDA MATTER DECISION 

131   Apologies for absence No apologies for absence were received. 

132   Declarations of Interest No declarations of interest were received. 

133   Merthyr Tydfil 
Replacement Local 
Development Plan 
(LDP) 2016 - 2031: 
Supplementary 
Planning Guidance 
(SPG) Notes 1 - 4 

Merthyr Tydfil Replacement Local Development Plan 
(LDP) 2016 - 2031: Supplementary Planning Guidance 
(SPG) Notes 1 – 4 
 
The Planning Officer led the committee through the report 
with the aid of a power point presentation. 
 
The following questions were raised by the committee and 
responded to in detail by the Planning Officers in 
attendance. 
 

Page 23

Agenda Item 5d



 
 
 
 
   

 

 Clarity was sought in relation to the terms on site 
and off site affordable housing in Supplementary 
Planning Guidance (SPG) 1 
 

 Would on site/off site affordable housing allow a 
developer to have a number of affordable houses 
on a development and further affordable housing on 
a separate site to meet the affordable housing 
criteria 
 

 Clarity was sought in relation to the figures on page 
7 of the Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG) 
1. Paragraph 4.2 states that the most recent Local 
Housing Market Assessment (LHMA) identified an 
annual need for 367 affordable dwellings. However, 
4.4 states that development proposals should 
deliver 253 affordable dwellings across the County 
Borough by 2031. 
 

 With a significant difference in the affordable 
housing figures can you confirm that it is likely there 
will still be a huge demand for affordable housing in 
11 years time 
 

 SPG 3 Archaeology & Archaeological Sensitive 
Areas Paragraph 9.5.1 states that Morlais Castle 
sits in Pant Ward, this is incorrect and should state 
Dowlais Ward. 
 

 Paragraph 9.8.3 of SPG 3 which relates to ASA8 
Merthyr Tydfil West: Heolgerrig, Winch Fawr, Cwm 
Du and Cwm Glo states there is a long history of 
mineral workings which began in the 18th Century, 
however; there is substantial evidence that the 
history of the area goes back much further than the 
18th Century. 
 

 SPG Notes 1-4 will be going out for consultation, 
can you confirm if it will be on-line  
 

 Will assistance, training and support be made 
available to state holders who wish to take part in 
the on-line consultation 
 

 In relation to SPG 3 Archaeology & Archaeological 
Sensitive Areas what are the main changes, is it 
going to make it more difficult for developers and 
what if a developer has already carried out a large 
amount of work and the SPG gets approved will 
that mean further work for developers to ensure 
their application meets the criteria 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 24



 
 
 
 
   

 

 Would the introduction of this SPG mean that 
developers would have to preserve what 
archaeological structures already there, for 
example a number of people weren’t happy when 
B&Q and the new college built over archaeological 
structures. 
 

After consideration by the Committee, it was Resolved 
that: 
 
The Committee approves the four Supplementary Planning 
Guidance Notes for public consultation purposes. 

134   Any Other Business 
Deemed Urgent by the 
Chair 

The Chair advised that there was no business deemed 
urgent, however Cllr D Sammon raised an issue with the 
Chief Officer Planning and Neighbourhood Services on 
behalf of a Ward Councillor who was having difficulty with 
the call in process for committee consideration. 

 
 

 

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

MINUTES OF MEETING 
 

AUDIT MEETING 
 

MONDAY, 12TH OCTOBER, 2020 
 
PRESENT:  
 

Councillors      C T Jones (Chair) 
                        D Roberts (Vice-Chair) 
 
Councillors:      D Chaplin, J Davies, T Rogers, D Sammon, 
C Tovey and J Thomas 
 
Lay Member: 
R Williams (Lay Member) 
 
Other Councillors in Attendance: 
A Barry (Cabinet Member) 
 

 Officers: 
S Jones (Head of Finance) and M Thomas (Head of Regional 
Audit Service) 
 
Outside Bodies:  
H Goddard, I Phillips and N Hollis (Audit Wales) 
 
M Morgan* (Democratic Services Officer) and M Phillips 
(Democratic Services Officer) 

 

ITEM 
NO. 

AGENDA MATTER DECISION 

Welcome 
 

The Chair welcomed Councillor D Chaplin and Councillor T Rogers to their first Audit Meeting.  
 

102   Apologies for absence No apologies for absence were received as all Members 
were present. 

103   Declarations of Interest No Declarations of Interest were made. 

Page 27

Agenda Item 5e



 
 
 
 
   

104   Wales Audit Office - 
Financial Sustainability 
Assessment - Merthyr 
Tydfil County Borough 
Council and Audit 
Wales National 
Financial Sustainability 
Report 

The Chair welcomed H Goddard, I Phillips and N Hollis of 
Audit Wales to the Meeting. 
 
Helen Goddard then led the Committee in detail through the 
‘Financial Sustainability Assessment – Merthyr Tydfil 
County Borough Council’ and ‘Financial Sustainability of 
Local Government as a Result of the COVID- 19 Pandemic’ 
reports. 
 
The following questions were then raised on the reports and 
were responded to in detail by Audit Wales and the Officers: 
 

 Timetable for presentation of the Medium-Term 
Financial Plan 

 Medium-Term Plan – Length of time to assess 
Risks, Strategic and Corporate 

 Settlement figures 

 The effect of Coronavirus on the economy – 
Paragraph 5 – ‘The Council needs to identify and 
deliver recurrent efficiency savings which will help 
to reduce the budget gap over the medium to long 
term’ – How can this be achieved – Reliance on UK 
and WG Funding 

 Paragraph 27 – Council Tax Collection – What 
steps are being deployed to recover this money 

 Borrowing to fund commercial activities – Is it 
recommended to have commercial activities– Are 
there Councils who do this – Are there any good 
examples of this 

 
Ian Phillips then referred to a ‘Commercialisation in Local 
Government’ report that was available via the Audit Wales 
Web site and he would also forward a link for this report. 
 

 Are recommendations made to Welsh Government 
in relation to the Settlement for Merthyr Tydfil 

 
A Member then suggested that Mark Thomas, the 
appropriate Officers and Wales Audit gave a Presentation 
to Members in relation to the financial situation. 
 
Helen Goddard advised that she would discuss this with the 
Engagement Director. 
 
After further consideration by the Committee it was 
 
Resolved that: 
 
The report be received. 
 
The Chair then thanked Helen Goddard and Ian Phillips for 
the report to the Committee. 

105   Audit Wales 
Presentation - Raising 
our Game: Tackling 
Fraud in Wales 

Ian Phillips made a Presentation to the Committee on 
‘Raising our Game: Tackling Fraud in Wales’ and gave 
details in relation to: 
 

 The Scale of Fraud – Phases l and ll 

Page 28



 
 
 
 
   

 Counter Fraud Phase l and Phase ll Study 

 Key National Findings 

 Phase l Overview of Sector: Local Government: 

 Resources, Work and Collaboration, Scrutiny, 
Impact 

 Key National Findings: Local Government 
 
The Chair then requested a report to Committee on where 
we are and are going in relation to Fraud. 
 
Mark Thomas and Steve Jones confirmed that a report 
would be brought to a future Committee Meeting. 
 
The following questions were then raised on the 
Presentation and were responded to by Ian Phillips and the 
Officers: 
 

 Has there been fraudulent activity as a result of for 
example Flooding, Coronavirus – What are the 
checks and balances 

 What is the current level of investigations – 
Changes to operation procedures – Are they being 
risk assessed 

 Is there a cost benefit analysis in relation to the 
resources needed 

 Different ways of working – One Department 
looking at another Department 

 
The Chair then requested that ‘Key National Funds’ referred 
to in the Presentation be included in the future programme 
for agenda items. 
 
Resolved that: 
 
The Presentation be received. 
 
The Chair then thanked Ian Phillips for the Presentation to 
the Committee. 

106   Internal Audit Plan 
2020/21 

Mark Thomas led the Committee in detail through the 
‘Annual Internal Audit Plan 2020/21’ and together with 
Steve Jones responded to the following questions raised: 
 

 Ffos y Fran – Contract and Royalty Payment  

 Is Appendix 1 based on Risk Assessment and is it 
in priority order 

 Are there sufficient staff resources 
 
Reference was then made to the Audit Manager and best 
wished were conveyed for a speedy recovery. 
 
Resolved that: 
 
The Annual Internal Audit Risk Based Plan for 2020/21 be 
approved. 

107   Internal Audit 
Information Reports 

The Chair referred the Committee to the ‘Information Report 
- Issued Internal Audit Reports’ and asked if the Committee 

Page 29



 
 
 
 
   

wished any of the reports to be considered in more detail. 
 
No referrals were requested by the Committee. 
 
Resolved that: 
 
The report be received. 

108   Reflection and 
Evaluation of Meeting 

The Chair and the Committee reflected on the issues that 
had been considered in the Meeting. 

109   Any other business 
deemed urgent by the 
Chair 

The Chair advised that there was no business deemed 
urgent. 

 
 

 

 
 

Page 30



 
 

MINUTES OF MEETING 
 

SCRUTINY : GOVERNANCE, 
PERFORMANCE, BUSINESS 
CHANGE AND CORPORATE 

SERVICES MEETING 
 

TUESDAY, 22ND SEPTEMBER, 2020 
 

 
PRESENT:  
 

Councillors:   T Skinner (Chair) 
                        

 Councillors: H R Jones, D Sammon, W R Smith and C T Jones 
  
 Officers: 

H Brown (Human Resources), L Emerson (Asset Management 
Principal Officer), P Lewis (Trading Standards and Licensing 
Manager), M Price (Revenue Officer) and S Lyons (Performance 
and Scrutiny Officer) 
 
Outside Bodies: 
Claire Brown  
 
A Taylor (Head of Democratic Services) and M Edmunds* 
(Democratic Services Officer) 

 

ITEM 
NO. 

AGENDA MATTER DECISION 

46   Apologies for Absence Apologies for absence were received from Councillor 
Gareth Lewis (Vice Chair), Councillor Andrew Barry 
(Portfolio Member) and Geoff Beard (Co-optee). 

47   Declarations of Interest 
(including whipping 
declarations) 

No Declarations of Interest were received. 

Page 31

Agenda Item 5f



 
 
 
 
   

48   Coronavirus Update - 
Response and 
Transition to Recovery 

The Chair introduced the Response and Transition to 
Recovery Coronavirus Update report and advised it was an 
opportunity for Members to catch up on what has happened 
since lockdown, key outcomes and plans for recovery. 
 
The Chair welcomed Paul Lewis to the meeting to provide 
further information and following a comment made by a 
Committee Member it was requested that due to the (new 
local lockdown restrictions) an additional brief overview be 
provided referring to the impact/effects on the last couple of 
days. 
 
(Councillor Gareth Lewis joined the meeting). 
 
Paul Lewis introduced  Lisa Emerson (Estates), Mark Price 
(Revenues) and Hannah Brown (HR) who are part of the 
Recovery sub group and in particular referred to:- 
 

 Immediate challenges (childcare issues for staff, 
staff self-isolation) 

 Support to public (PPE, redeployment of staff to 
support community) 

 Agile Working 

 Reducing footprint and office space 
 
The following questions/comments were raised by 
Committee and answered in detail by the Officers:- 
 

 What is the plan to re-open the front desk at the 
Civic Centre (request for risk assessment update). 

 What services have digitally been provided for the 
public. 

 How many council tax summons have been issued. 

 Clarity sought on (point 5.1) staff numbers working 
remotely; (point 6.2) number of staff that completed 
the survey and number of staff self- isolating. 

 Youth working. 

 Localised lockdown timescales. 

 Business sector grants. 

 Clarity sought on staff returning from abroad and 
having to quarantine. 

 
Committee Members complimented officers on the work 
that has been undertaken. 
 
Resolved that: 
 

a) Committee Members receive the report, noting the 
actions taken by the Council in response to the 
pandemic; and 

 
b) Committee Members consider the future plans to 

respond to the phased relaxation of lockdown; and 
how the Council will work differently to meet the 
needs of the ‘new norm’. 

49   Draft Work Programme Following a request made by Scrutiny Support the Chair 
agreed that Items 3 and 4 be dealt with in reverse order as 

Page 32



 
 
 
 
   

the Work Programme needed to be agreed before moving 
on to any other items. 
 
The Chair introduced the report and made particular 
reference to:- 
 

 Meeting statutory requirements 

 Action Tracker 

 Four Key Strands 

 Unprecedented events – (Floods; Covid 19). 
 
Resolved that: 
 
The Committee approve the Draft Forward Work Plan. 

50   Scrutiny Referrals, 
Feedback and Follow 
up Actions 

The Chair invited Sian Lyons to update Committee. 
 
The following matters were noted:- 
 

 that the risk assessment on the Civic Centre front 
desk re-opening would be escalated to CMT by 
Paul Lewis and an update be brought back to 
Committee. 

 

 Hannah Brown, HR provided figure of 383 
responses in reply to a question raised regarding 
number of staff that completed the survey. 

 

 Action Tracker will be reviewed at each Committee 
under Scrutiny Referrals, Feedback and Follow Up 
Actions.  

 

 All reports going forward should have the ‘covid 
lens’ and ‘lessons learnt’ approach. 

 

 Future pre-meetings will take place at 3.30 p.m. 

51   Reflection and 
Evaluation of Meeting 

The Chair reflected on the items discussed in the meeting. 

52   Any other business 
deemed urgent by the 
Chair 

The Chair advised that the Corporate Plan and Annual 
Performance Report historically came to Committee in the 
final stages.  It is now suggested that   as a Committee we 
have a more involved role using    
workshop style meetings to shape and scrutinise during 
rather than at the end of the process which will give more 
ownership to Committee. 
 
Sian Lyons provided an update on Self Evaluation and what 
needed to be done by Committee Members.  
 
No other business was deemed urgent and the meeting 
was closed. 

 
 

 

Page 33



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

MINUTES OF MEETING 
 

SCRUTINY : GOVERNANCE, 
PERFORMANCE, BUSINESS 
CHANGE AND CORPORATE 

SERVICES MEETING 
 

TUESDAY, 13TH OCTOBER, 2020 
 

 
PRESENT:  
 

Councillors:   C T Jones (Deputy Chair, in the Chair) 
                       
 

 Councillors: H R Jones, D Sammon and W R Smith 
  
 Cooptees: 

C Payne (Public) and S Fureed (MTBWYF) 
 
Other Councillors in Attendance: 
A Barry (Cabinet Member) and D Hughes (Cabinet Member) 
 
Officers: 
J Jones (Chief Officer Neighbourhood Services), P Davies 
(Waste Management), P Jones (Environmental Cleansing and 
Enforcement Manager), M Davies (Countryside Planning - 
Ecologist), I Goldsworthy (Energy Officer) and S Lyons 
(Performance and Scrutiny Officer) 
 
M Morgan* (Democratic Services Officer) and M Phillips 
(Democratic Services Officer) 

 

ITEM 
NO. 

AGENDA MATTER DECISION 

110   Apologies for Absence Apologies for absence were received from Councillor T 
Skinner Chair and  Councillor G Lewis Vice-Chair. 

Page 35

Agenda Item 5g



 
 
 
 
   

Chair 
 

In the absence of the Chair and Vice-Chair it was 
 
Resolved that: 
 
Councillor C T Jones take the Chair. 
 

111   Declarations of Interest 
(including whipping 
declarations) 

No Declarations of Interest were made. 

Welcome 
 

The Chair welcomed Samee Fureed Youth Forum Representative to his first Scrutiny 
Committee Meeting. 
 

112   Environmental 
Wellbeing 

The Chair referred the Committee to the ‘Environmental 
Wellbeing’ report. 
 
Judith Jones then led the Committee in detail through the 
report and together with the Officers  and Councillor 
Hughes responded in detail to the following questions 
raised by the Committee: 
 

 What lessons have been learned 

 The amount of litter on the road - Fast food litter - 
Can signage be erected against littering - Officer 
involvement 

 Are the street cleansers able to follow the recycle 
collection vehicle on their round 

 Is the Georgetown area included in the Saturday 
and Sunday Town Centre collection route 

 Clarification sought in relation to land ownership in 
the location of the Leisure Centre – Who is 
responsible for emptying of litter bins – Has the 
situation changed now that more premises are 
open – Frequency of litter picking 

 
Paul Jones advised that this matter was being discussed 
with the Legal Department and the Committee agreed that 
the appropriate letter be drafted and reported back to 
Committee  
 

 Problems all over the County Borough and Town 
Centre due to litter being thrown from vehicles and 
not being disposed of properly 

 Paragraph 6.7 – Bogey Road – Enquiry re- a barrier 
to stop dumping – Would it be possible to erect an 
electronic sign in the area advising of possible 
prosecution 

 Paragraph 6.9 – Information requested in relation to 
rubbish on non-Council land – What happens when 

Page 36



 
 
 
 
   

on non-Registered land  

 Timeline on follow up responses for reports made in 
relation to fly tipping 

 Paragraph 5.5 – Explanation requested in relation 
to the figures for Carbon Dioxide emissions  

 Is private and unregistered land the same 

 How can complaints on private land be dealt with 

 Are the recycling bins suitable for the amount being 
recycled 

 Paragraph 7.5 – Update requested on the number 
of office based staff 

 
Judith Jones advised that a report was being prepared in 
relation to some of the issues raised by the Committee. 
 
Resolved that: 
 

(a) The content of the report be discussed and 
Performance Information scrutinised 

(b) Scrutiny Committee Members offer any appropriate 
feedback to enable Officers to consider when 
understanding future service planning and delivery 
discussions 

113   Forward Work 
Programme 2020/21 

The Chair referred the Committee to the ‘Forward Work 
Programme 2020/21’ report. 
 
Citizens Advice Bureau (CAB) 
 
A Member then referred to the impact of Covid on job 
losses, Universal Credit,  local lockdown, the impact on 
travel etc. 
 
The Scrutiny Officer advised that she would write to the 
CAB advising of the issues raised by the Committee in 
preparation for the 24 November 2020 Committee Meeting. 
 
Food Premises – Littering Issues 
 
The Committee to receive an update report from Paul Jones 
at the Meeting scheduled for 12 January 2021 with this 
report also being forwarded to the Neighbourhood Services, 
Planning and Countryside Scrutiny Committee. 
 
Black Bin Charges 
. 
A report to be prepared by the appropriate Officers to be 
considered in the first instance by the Neighbourhood 
Services, Planning and Countryside Scrutiny Committee 
and then at the Governance Committee Meeting scheduled 
for 4 May 2021.  
 
Resolved subject to the foregoing that: 
 
The Forward Work Programme be approved. 

114   Scrutiny Referrals, 
Feedback and Follow 

Sian Lyons referred to an ‘Action Tracker’ summary sheet 
and the following items that were included in this sheet: 

Page 37



 
 
 
 
   

up Actions  

 Pre- Meeting start time of 3.30 pm 

 Information in relation to Risk Assessment for the 
Front Desk of the Civic Centre re-opening together 
with opening of the Civic Centre 

 
The Committee then agreed the following:  
 

 The ‘Action Tracker’ be included with the agenda 
papers for every Committee Meeting under the 
Scrutiny Referrals, Feedback and Follow up Actions 
item 

 

 An update Committee report on the closure of the 
Civic Centre with Committee Members to be kept 
informed of progress by the Scrutiny Officer prior to 
the Committee Meeting  

 

 A Committee report on Food Premises and highway 
cleansing 

 

 A Committee report on the Bogey Road to include 
possible erection of signage 

 

 Correspondence with the CAB by the Scrutiny 
Officer to include the issues raised by the 
Committee 

 

 A Committee report on Black Bin Charges 

115   Reflection and 
Evaluation of Meeting 

The Chair and the Committee reflected on the issues that 
had been considered at the Meeting.  

116   Any other business 
deemed urgent by the 
Chair 

The Chair advised that there was no business deemed 
urgent. 

 
 

 

Page 38



 
 

MINUTES OF MEETING 
 

SCRUTINY : SOCIAL 
SERVICES MEETING 

 
TUESDAY, 15TH SEPTEMBER, 2020 

 

 
PRESENT:  
 

Councillors:  W R Smith (Chair) 
                     S Jago (Vice-Chair) 
 

 Councillors G Richards, D Sammon and I Thomas 
  
  

Other Councillors in Attendance: 
C Davies (Cabinet Member) 
 
Officers: 
S Lyons (Performance and Scrutiny Officer), L Morgan 
(Supporting People), T Hudd (Family Support) and J Eyre 
(Safeguarding) 
 
M Morgan* (Democratic Services Officer), M Edmunds 
(Democratic Services Officer) and A Taylor (Head of Democratic 
Services) 

 

ITEM 
NO. 

AGENDA MATTER DECISION 

Co-opted Member 
 

The Chair welcomed Mr I Cathrew, Co-opted Member to his first Scrutiny Meeting where he 
was in attendance as an Observer. 
 

16   Apologies for absence Apologies for absence were received from Councillor T 
Rogers as he was unable to join the Meeting due to a 
technical Issue. 

Page 39

Agenda Item 5h



 
 
 
 
   

17   Declarations of Interest 
(including whipping 
declarations) 

No Declarations of Interest were made. 

18   Draft Forward Work 
Programme 2020/21 

The Chair referred the Committee to the Draft Forward 
Work Programme 2020/21. 
 
Reference was made to 15 September 2020 Meeting on the 
Forward Work Programme - Scrutiny and Challenge where 
it should read ‘Social Services’ and not ‘Neighbourhood 
Services. 
 
Resolved subject to the foregoing that: 
 
The Draft Forward Work Programme 2020/21 be approved. 

19   Coronavirus Pandemic 
- Update on Recovery 
and Activity 

The Chair welcomed Councillor C Davies Cabinet Member, 
Jon Eyre, Lowri Morgan and Taryn Hudd to the Meeting. 
 
Councillor C Davies then referred the Committee to the 
‘Coronavirus Pandemic – Update on Recovery and Activity’ 
report. 
 
Tributes were then paid by the Committee to the hard work 
undertaken by the staff and thanks for their dedication and 
commitment. 
 
Taryn Hudd then gave an overview to the Committee on the 
work undertaken over the past four months in relation to 
Children’s Services. 
 
The following questions were then raised by the Committee 
and were responded to in detail: 
 

 Paragraph 7.2 – What is the current situation in 
relation to agile working – Are any staff solely 
working from home or is it mixed 

 Are all Social Workers undertaking Face to Face 
Community visits – Are Children being seen 

 Staffing Capacity 

 What other risk have been identified for Children’s 
Services 

 What is the number of Children Looked After – 
What is the situation in other Local Authorities 

 Paragraph 5.9 – Further information sought on the 
backlog – Are there enough resources 

 What are the links with Outside Agencies 

 Further information requested on the Testing of 
staff and residents in Care Homes and the 
frequency of testing 

 
Councillor C Davies advised that the Chief Officer could 
update the Councillors on Testing in Care Homes 
 

 Supply of PPE Equipment 

 Update requested on Disabled Facilities Grants – 
When will assessments be undertaken 

 Respite provision – What provision is being made 

Page 40



 
 
 
 
   

for Carers 
 
Jon Eyre then gave an overview to the Committee on the 
work undertaken in relation to Safeguarding.  
 
The Chair then referred to the amount of work that had 
been undertaken and that staff had been tremendous in 
looking after the elderly and children and to convey 
appreciation to the staff. 
 
The Chair then thanked Councillor C Davies and the 
Officers for attending and the update to the Committee. 

20   Reflection and 
Evaluation of Meeting 

The Chair and the Committee reflected on the issues that 
had been considered in the Meeting. 

21   Scrutiny Referrals, 
Feedback and Follow 
up Actions 

Pre - Meeting Start Time 
 
The Committee agreed that the Pre-Meeting for Committee 
Members would commence at 2.30 pm. 
 
Self-Evaluation for Scrutiny Members 
 
Sian Lyons outlined to the Committee the self-evaluation 
process for Scrutiny Committee Members and the process 
on completion of the self-evaluation. 
 
Typing error amendments in the Work Programme 
 
Reconfiguration of Peripatetic Social Workers Posts to 
Peripatetic Support Workers – Children’s Services 
 
The report that was considered at the Council Meeting held 
9 September 2020 to be considered by the Scrutiny 
Committee 

22   Any other business 
deemed urgent by the 
Chair 

The Chair advised that there was no business deemed 
urgent. 

 
 

 

Page 41



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

MINUTES OF MEETING 
 

SCRUTINY : SOCIAL 
SERVICES MEETING 

 
TUESDAY, 6TH OCTOBER, 2020 

 

 
PRESENT:  
 

Councillors:  W R Smith (Chair) 
                     S Jago (Vice-Chair) 
 

 Councillors G Richards, T Rogers and D Sammon 
  

 
 

 Cooptees: 
I Cathrew 
 
Other Councillors in Attendance: 
Cabinet Member for Social Services – Councillor C Davies 
 
Officers: 
L Curtis Jones (Chief Officer (Social Services)), A Edevane 
(Adult services), T Hudd (Family Support), G Lewis (Complaints 
Officer) and S Jablaoui (Scrutiny Officer) 
 
M Phillips* (Democratic Services), M Morgan (Democratic 
Services Officer) and M Edmunds (Democratic Services Officer) 

 

ITEM 
NO. 

AGENDA MATTER DECISION 

71   Apologies for absence Apologies for absence were received from Councillor I 
Thomas. 

72   Declarations of Interest 
(including whipping 
declarations) 

No declarations of interest were received.  

Page 43

Agenda Item 5i



 
 
 
 
   

73   Annual Report - Social 
Services Complaints, 
Representations and 
Compliments 
2018/2019 

A minutes silence was held by the committee in memory of 
former Councillor Helen Thomas. 
 
Lisa Curtis-Jones introduced the item to the committee 
before Gaynor Lewis provided an overview of the 
complaints procedure and highlighted the salient points 
within the report. 
 
Councillor T Rogers entered the meeting 
 
The following questions were raised by the committee and 
responded to in detail by the officers in attendance.  
 

 The report states you in the process of setting up 
dedicated email addresses for departments as an 
alternative method of communication for parents – 
what is the timescale for this to be implemented 

 

 In 2018 – 2019 there were 96 complaints, do you 
find that the same complainants make complaints 
year on year 
 

 You mentioned that people can be apprehensive 
about making a complaint, why do you think this is 
the case, would it be that the complainant thinks it 
will affect the service they receive 
 

 In a child protection case if a complaint was made 
would it be rejected until the legal case is dealt so 
that the two processes wouldn’t be running parallel 
 

 Is it correct that Social Services staff do not provide 
their personal email addresses to members of the 
public they deal with and if so what is the reason for 
this 
 

 If contact details were provided at the first point of 
contact it could negate a large number of 
complaints in relation to lack of communication 
 

 Issue were raised about the report not having 
enough depth or information about where the 
complaints were coming from and more importantly 
how we learn lessons. The report states that 
between upheld and partially upheld there were 37 
cases this is where we need focus future reports. 
As for this committee It is about improving the 
processes and systems. 
 

 How many Stage One complaints go outside of the 
10 working days that is stated in the report and why 
 

 Can you provide details of how the independent 
investigators are chosen 
 

 
 
 

Page 44



 
 
 
 
   

 

 In relation to complaints process have you 
considered calling them concerns, people may be 
more likely to raise a concern than a complaint at 
the first stage 
 

 Can you confirm when we will receive this year’s 
Annual Report 
 

The Chair requested a workshop be set up so that the 
committee could look at the complaints process and gain a 
better understanding going forward. 
 
The Chair thanked the officer for the report and the 
responses to the questions raised by the committee. 
 
 
 
  

74   Transformation of Day 
Services Provision 

Lisa Curtis-Jones introduced the item to the committee and 
provided an update in relation to what has changed in day 
services since the start of the pandemic. 
 
Angela Edevane then highlighted the salient points within 
the report. 
 
The following questions were raised by the committee and 
responded to in detail by the officers in attendance. 
 
 

 Can you explain why the consultation report going 
to the next Full Council meeting before being 
brought before the Scrutiny committee 
 

 Can you provide the committee with further 
information in relation to why all of our 
commissioned services apart from one remain 
closed 
 

 Over 72% of people who responded to the survey 
were against the suggested changes to the 
services, can you confirm that if any changes are 
proposed they will be brought before Full Council 
 

The Cabinet member for Social Services Councillor C 
Davies provided the committee with an overview in relation 
to day services and the transformation. 
 
The Chair thanked the officers for the report and their input 
at the meeting. 
 

75   Forward Work 
Programme 2020/21 

The Chair requested that the work programme be updated 
once the Complaints Workshop had been organised with 
the relevant officers and committee members. 
 
 

Page 45



 
 
 
 
   

76   Scrutiny Referrals, 
Feedback and Follow 
up Actions 

The Chair advised that there were no referrals, feedback or 
follow up actions.  

77   Reflection and 
Evaluation of Meeting 

The Chair and the Committee reflected on the issues that 
had been considered. 

78   Any other business 
deemed urgent by the 
Chair 

The Chair advised the committee that there was no other 
business deemed urgent and thanked everyone for their 
attendance before closing the meeting. 

 
 

 

Page 46



 
 

MINUTES OF MEETING 
 

SCRUTINY : 
NEIGHBOURHOOD SERVICES, 

PLANNING AND 
COUNTRYSIDE MEETING 

 
MONDAY, 28TH SEPTEMBER, 2020 

 

 
PRESENT:  
 

Councillors   D Sammon (Chair) 
                     D Jones (Vice-Chair) 
 

 Councillors M Colbran, J Davies, L Davies and C T Jones 
  

 
 Cooptees: 

R Holdaway (Public), J McCarthy (Public) and T Butler (Youth 
Forum Representative) 
 
Officers: 
S Lyons (Performance and Scrutiny Officer), J Jones (Chief 
Officer Neighbourhood Services) and P Davies (Waste 
Management) 
 
M Morgan* (Democratic Services Officer), M Edmunds 
(Democratic Services Officer) and A Taylor (Head of Democratic 
Services) 
 

 

ITEM 
NO. 

AGENDA MATTER DECISION 

 
 
 
 

Page 47

Agenda Item 5j



 
 
 
 
   

Co-opted Member 
 

The Chair welcomed Mr P Star, Co-opted Member to his first Scrutiny Meeting where he was 
in attendance as an Observer. 
 

53   Apologies for absence No apologies for absence were received as all Committee 
Members were present. 

54   Declarations of Interest 
(including whipping 
declarations) 

No Declarations of Interest were made. 

55   Draft Forward Work 
Programme 2020/21 

The Chair referred the Committee to the Draft Forward 
Work Programme 2020/21. 
 
The Committee were advised of the following proposed 
amendments to the Work Programme: 
 
Community Asset Transfer Policy – To be moved from 2 
November 2020 to 7 December 2020 
 
Fly Tipping – To be moved from 7 December 2020 to 2 
November 2020 
A short update report on Fly Tipping to be presented at the 
18 January 2021 Meeting  
 
Energy Saving / Carbon Management – To be moved from 
1 March 2021 to 7 December 2020 
 
These amendments were then agreed by the Committee. 
 
Resolved subject to the foregoing that: 
 
The Draft Forward Work Programme 2020/21 be approved. 

56   Coronavirus Pandemic 
- Update on Recovery 
and Activity 

Judith Jones Chief Officer Planning and Neighbourhood 
Services referred the Committee to the ‘Coronavirus 
Pandemic – Update on Recovery and Activity’ report. 
 
The following questions were then raised by the Committee 
and were responded to in detail by the Officers: 
 

 Street Cleansing – Is ‘area working’ still in place  

 Paragraph 5.2 – Tidy Towns – Update requested 
on Funding – What in monetary terms is the 
financial impact – Timeline 

 Paragraph 6.1 – Update requested on recycling 
targets – What is the target – What are the 
penalties if not met – Is tonnage collected from 
Health Board Premises 

 Paragraph 4.2 – ‘Follow’ vehicles – Could anything 
have been done better – Were there any areas 
where staff did not reside – The difference between 
travelling by Public Transport 

 Paragraph 4.3: 

 Waste – HWRC’s – Are the current measures going 

Page 48



 
 
 
 
   

to be implemented full time 

 Fly – Tipping – Was the target maintained – Will 
there be a financial gain for an increase in 
cardboard  

 Highways – Update on Maintenance – Will a store 
for materials be looked at for the future 

 Cemeteries – Will it be possible to install new signs 
advising the direction of travel – Can enforcement 
be undertaken in relation to vehicles being blocked 
in 

 Water Courses and Culverts – What are the plans 
for monitoring – Information for the Emergency Plan 

 Paragraph 4.5 – Financial Implications – What 
income has been lost through Planning, Building 
Control and Trade Waste 

 Were Covid costs included in the figures 
 
The Chair then congratulated all the Officers and staff for 
the work done in lockdown. These sentiments were echoed 
by the Committee with congratulations being extended to all 
staff for the way staff had adapted to different ways of 
working. 
 
Resolved that: 
 
The content of the report be noted. 

57   Scrutiny Referrals, 
Feedback and Follow 
up Actions 

Pre - Meeting Start Time 
 
The Committee agreed that the Pre-Meeting for Committee 
Members would commence thirty Minutes before the start of 
the Committee Meeting. 
 
Committee Start Time 
 
It was agreed that the Scrutiny Officer contact all 
Committee Members regarding the start time for the 
Committee Meetings to obtain their views regarding 
amending the start time. 
 
Agenda Papers 
 
A Member stated that paper copies of the agenda should be 
available for those Committee Members that required them. 
 
Self–Evaluation for Scrutiny Members 
 
Sian Lyons outlined to the Committees the self-evaluation 
process for Scrutiny Committee Members and the process 
on completion of the self-evaluation. 
 
Forward Work Programme 
 
It was agreed that an additional column be added to the 
Forward Work Programme advising of the Corporate 
Strategy and the area(s) that the action related to. 
 
Sian Lyons also advised in response to a request from the 

Page 49



 
 
 
 
   

Chair that the titles of Officers would be included on the 
Forward Work Programme. 
 
Councillor C T Jones left the Meeting at 3.21 pm. 

58   Reflection and 
Evaluation of Meeting 

The Chair and the Committee reflected on the issues that 
had been considered in the Meeting. 

59   Any other business 
deemed urgent by the 
Chair 

The Chair advised that there was no business deemed 
urgent. 

 
 

 

Page 50



 
 

MINUTES OF MEETING 
 

SCRUTINY : REGENERATION 
AND PUBLIC PROTECTION 

MEETING 
 

TUESDAY, 29TH SEPTEMBER, 2020 
 

 
PRESENT:  
 

Councillors   G Lewis (Chair) 
                     K Gibbs (Vice-Chair) 
 

 Councillors   M Colbran, L Davies and S Thomas 
  
 Co-optees: 

H Hopkins (Public) and M Ellis (Youth Forum Representative) 
 
Other Councillors in Attendance: 
G Thomas (Cabinet Member) 
 
Officers: 
A Owen (Interim Deputy Chief Executive), C Long (Economic 
Development & Strategic Tourism Manager), S Jablaoui 
(Performance Officer) and P Lewis (Trading Standards and 
Licensing Manager), S Hopkins (Environmental Health) and S 
Stephens (Housing) 
 
M Morgan* (Democratic Services Officer) and M Edmunds 
(Democratic Services Officer) 
 
 

 

ITEM 
NO. 

AGENDA MATTER DECISION 

60   Apologies for Absence No apologies for absence were received. 

Page 51

Agenda Item 5k



 
 
 
 
   

61   Declarations of Interest 
(including whipping 
declarations) 

No Declarations of Interest were made. 

62   Draft Work Programme 
2020-2021 

The Chair referred the Committee to the Draft Forward 
Work Programme 2020/21. 
 
The Committee were advised of the Committee scheduled 
for 1 December 2020 and it was proposed that the item on 
Homelessness proposed for 13 April 2021 be moved to the 
December Committee. 
 
This amendment was agreed by the Committee. 
 
The Chair advised that he had met with the Scrutiny Officer 
regarding possible topics and had highlighted five issues to 
focus on with three having a Covid theme during and post 
Covid, Public Protection Issues and Regeneration matters. 
 
A Committee Member then referred to the Third Sector and 
what was being done to support the Third Sector. 
 
Alyn Owen then referred to the topics for the Work 
Programme and the need to drill down and refine whilst 
taking into account the current work programme. 
 
It was then agreed that the Chair, Alyn Owen and the 
Scrutiny Officer discuss further the topic for the next 
Meeting prior to the Meeting. 
 
Resolved subject to the foregoing that: 
 
The Draft Forward Work Programme 2020/21 be approved. 

63   Coronavirus Report – 
Response & Transition 
to Recovery 

The Chair referred the Committee to the ‘Coronavirus 
Update – Response and Transition to Recovery’ report 
 
A Committee Member then requested a brief update 
overview at each Meeting. 
 
Alyn Owen advised that key Officers could attend future 
Committee Meetings to give an overview of the current 
responses to Covid by the Directorate. 
 
The Committee then received an overview from the 
appropriate Officers of the responses previously and 
currently to the crisis and what was being done in terms of 
recovery 
 
Paul Lewis then gave an overview to the Committee in 
relation to the work undertaken by Public Protection  
 
Chris Long also gave an overview to the Committee in 
relation to the work undertaken by Regeneration 
 
The following questions were then raised by the Committee: 
 

 Paragraph 4.10 – Town Centre Business Digital 
Project – Are there any plans for free wi-fi in the 

Page 52



 
 
 
 
   

Town Centre 

 Location of land for outdoor hospitality 

 Paragraph 5.6 - 

 Modular Homes – Explanation of Costs 

 Neighbourhood Learning Centre – Update on this 
 
Chris Long advised that a report on the Neighbourhood 
Learning Centre could be brought to Committee later in the 
year together with consultation being undertaken with the 
Ward Members. 
 

 How many Cafes have closed or are temporarily 
closed in the Town Centre 

 Has there been an increase in the number of 
visitors to Merthyr Tydfil in terms of staycations 

 Is there funding available for out of Town Centre 
businesses – What businesses were unable to 
have outdoor furniture 

 How is contact made with businesses 

 Creative Freelancers Fund – How many would this 
fund assist in Merthyr Tydfil 

 Could there be businesses who fell through a Covid 
gap 

 How has Covid affected the day time economy in 
the Town Centre 

 Update requested on Geosence  

 Information requested on the Farmers Market 
 
Sarah Hopkins then gave an overview to the Committee in 
relation to the work undertaken by Public Health. 
 
The following questions were then raised by the Committee: 

 Information requested on the Covid rate – Are there 
specific clusters 

 Explanation of the figures as it applies to Merthyr 
Tydfil as the smallest Local Authority 

 
Suzanne Stephens then updated the Committee in relation 
to Housing and Homelessness. 
 
The following questions were then raised by the Committee: 
 

 Paragraph 5.6 - 

 Modular Homes – Details requested on the homes 

 Neighbourhood Learning Centre – Update 
requested on the proposal 

 Paragraph 5.7 – Homelessness – Were all rough 
sleepers able to be accommodated during Covid 
lockdown – Will there be a need for a Winter Night 
Shelter this year – Reasons for preclusion from the 
Night Shelter 

 What is the role of the Castle Hotel 
 
A Member then expressed thanks to the staff who had 
worked with homeless residents throughout the County 
Borough and these comments were endorsed by the 
Committee. 
 

Page 53



 
 
 
 
   

Resolved that: 
 

(a) The report be received and its content noted 
(b) Committee Members explore the lessons learned 

and how these will support development of future 
plans to respond to the phased relaxation of 
lockdown and acknowledge how the Council will be 
required to work differently to meet the needs of the 
‘new norm’. 

 
The Chair then thanked the Officers for attending and the 
update to the Committee. 
 
Councillor L Davies and Councillor S Thomas left the 
Meeting at 3.26 pm. 

64   Scrutiny Referrals, 
Feedback and Follow 
Up Actions 

Self- Evaluation for Scrutiny Members 
 
Saeif Jablaoui outlined to the Committee the self-evaluation 
process for Scrutiny Committee Members and the process 
on completion of the self-evaluation 
 
Coronavirus Update 
 
The Committee agreed that an update report on 
Coronavirus be an agenda item on all Committee Meetings. 

65   Reflection and 
Evaluation of Meeting 

The Chair and the Committee reflected in detail on the 
issues that had been considered in the Meeting. 

66   Any Other Business 
deemed urgent by the 
Chair 

The Chair advised that there was no business deemed 
urgent. 

 
 

 

Page 54



 
 

MINUTES OF MEETING 
 

SCRUTINY : LEARNING AND 
LGES MEETING 

 
MONDAY, 21ST SEPTEMBER, 2020 

 

 
PRESENT:  
 

Councillors  H R Jones (Chair) 
                       S Jago (Vice-Chair) 

  
Councillors H Barrett and M Jones 

  
 

 Cooptees: 
C Brown (Parent Governor-Primary) and M Symonds (MT 
Assoc. of School Governors) 
 
Officers: 
A Lewis (Head of School Planning Performance and Resource), 
S Walker (Chief Education Officer), S Lyons (Performance and 
Scrutiny Officer) and C Hole (Head of Community Wellbeing) 
 
Outside Bodies: 
 C Burns (Assurance & Improvement Board), E Willmott (Central 
South Consortium), D Morgan (Chair of Governors – Troedyrhiw 
Primary School), H Davies (Estyn), J Edwards (Estyn), K Maher 
(Head Teacher – Pen-Y-Dre High school) and J Roome (Head 
Teacher – Troedyrhiw Primary School) 
 
M Phillips (Democratic Services Officer) 
 

 

ITEM 
NO. 

AGENDA MATTER DECISION 

39   Apologies for absence Apologies for absence were received from Councillor D 
Isaac and K Phelan. 

Page 55

Agenda Item 5l



 
 
 
 
   

40   Declarations of Interest 
(including whipping 
declarations) 

No declarations of interest were received. 

41   Draft Forward Work 
Programme 2020/21 

The Chair introduced the item and explained to the 
committee that the Work Programme can be revised and 
amended at any point throughout the year.  
 
Resolved that: 
 
The Committee approved the Draft Forward Work 
Programme. 

42   Update on Activity - 
Pandemic 

Sue Walker introduced Jacqui Roome Head Teacher at 
Troedyrhiw Primary School and Keith Maher Head Teacher 
at Pen-y-Dre High School. Both Head Teachers provided 
comprehensive PowerPoint presentations highlighting the 
demands and challenges faced by their schools since the 
start of the Pandemic in March. 
 
Denise Morgan (Chair of Governors – Troedyrhriw Primary 
School) provided an update in relation to the role the 
Governors played in assisting in the detailed plan set out to 
ensure Troedyrhiw Primary School met the targets they set 
out at the start of the Pandemic. 
 
The following questions were raised by the committee and 
answered in detail by the Head Teachers and Officers in 
attendance. 
 

 In relation to the seesaw app is it a one way or two 
way communication tool – does it provide 
parents/pupils with the ability to ask questions of 
the teachers 

 

 It was stated that attendance has dropped from 
94% to 80%. Is the majority of the drop due to 
illness or fear of Covid-19 
 

 Have all schools in the County Borough carried out 
the same level of research as Troedyrhiw Primary 
in relation to identifying digitally excluded families, 
as it would be very useful to be able to pinpoint 
families that would require additional support if we 
do end up in another lockdown situation 
 

 How many digitally excluded learners are there in 
the County Borough 
 

 Do you think the plan is currently working, keeping 
the class bubbles, social distancing etc especially in 
Troedyrhiw Primary as it is an old school with a 
very different layout compared with the modern 
Primary schools in the Borough. 

 
 
 
 

Page 56



 
 
 
 
   

 
The Chair thanked the Head Teachers for their fantastic 
insight into how their schools have dealt with the many 
issues they have been faced with in such difficult times and 
also thanked them for all of their hard work. 
 
Sue Walker provided the committee with an overview of the 
Update on Activity – Pandemic report that was produced for 
the committee.  
 
 
 
 

43   Scrutiny Referrals, 
Feedback and Follow 
up Actions 

The Chair requested an update from Chris Hole in relation 
to the Parenting Strategy. 

44   Reflection and 
Evaluation of Meeting 

The Chair reflected in detail on the items discussed in the 
meeting.   

45   Any other business 
deemed urgent by the 
Chair 

The Chair thanked everyone for their attendance and the 
officers for the excellent presentations and report and as 
there was no other business deemed urgent the meeting 
was closed. 

 
 

 

Page 57



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

MINUTES OF MEETING 
 

SCRUTINY : LEARNING AND 
LGES MEETING 

 
 

MONDAY, 19TH OCTOBER, 2020 
 

 
PRESENT:  
 

Councillors  H R Jones (Chair) 
                       S Jago (Vice-Chair) 

  
Councillors H Barrett, B Carter, D Isaac and M Jones 

  
 Cooptees: 

C Brown (Parent Governor-Primary), K Phelan (Diocesan 
Representative), F Whitefoot (Public Appointed) and C Gwynne 
(MTBWYF) 
 
Other Councillors in Attendance: 
L Mytton (Cabinet Member) 
 
Officers: 
S Walker (Chief Education Officer), C Hole (Head of Community 
Wellbeing), A Lewis (Head of School Planning Performance and 
Resource) and S Jablaoui (Performance Officer) 
 
Outside Bodies: 
Emma Willmott (Central South Consortium) 
 
M Morgan* (Democratic Services Officer) and M Edmunds 
(Democratic Services Officer) 
 

 

ITEM 
NO. 

AGENDA MATTER DECISION 

 

Page 59

Agenda Item 5m



 
 
 
 
   

Welcome 
 

The Chair welcomed the new Co-opted Members to their first Committee Meeting. 
 

117   Apologies for absence No apologies for absence were received. 

118   Declarations of Interest 
(including whipping 
declarations) 

No Declarations of Interest were made. 

119   Central South 
Consortium (CSC) 
Commitments to 
Raising Aspirations 
Raising Standards 
Strategy (RARS) 

The Chair referred the Committee to the ‘Central South 
Consortium (CSC) Commitments to Raising Aspirations 
Raising Standards Strategy (RARS)’ Report and welcomed 
Emma Willmott to the Meeting. 
 
Sue Walker then introduced the report to the Committee. 
 
Emma Willmott gave an overview to the Committee in 
relation to ‘Raising Aspirations, Raising Standards’ – 
Working in Partnership with Central South Consortium and 
how the Consortium were supporting blended / hybrid 
learning and led the Committee in detail through the 
document attached at Appendix 1 of the report. 
 
The following questions were then raised by the Committee 
and were responded to by Emma Willmott and the Officers: 
 

 Are the objectives in the plan Covid proof – Is the 
expectation timetable the same 

 Have the dates been signed off by the 
Headteachers or have they been set by the 
Consortium 

 What are the school years and how will it be rolled 
into schools 

 When will the Welcome Assessments be done 

 Appendix 1 -Our approach – ‘Plans may need to 
adapt and change to deal with the high level of 
uncertainty which faces us due to Covid 19’ – Has 
this been shared to date with the Headteachers 

 Objective 1 – Stakeholder buy in – Is this the 
response to the previous question 

 What we will deliver and when – Objective 1 – 
Leadership – Governance / Middle Management - 
Is the date of 2020 correct 

(Emma Willmott advised that it was an error and should 
read 2021 and that it would be amended) 

 Welsh Government Child development Fund – Will 
a bid be made for this money 

 How will blended learning be approached – Is there 
a pathway of evaluation or is it too early to evaluate 

 Paragraph 5.0 and 6.0 – To ensure that all Children 
have the best possible learning experience 

 The role of the Consortium in RARS 

 Judgement targets 
 

Page 60



 
 
 
 
   

Resolved that: 
 

(a) The content of the report be noted 
(b) Members consider if further information is needed 

to understand the support for the RARS Strategy 
from CSC or other service areas. 

 
The Chair then thanked Emma Willmott for attending and 
the update to the Committee. 

120   Corporate Self-
Evaluation – Key 
Question 2 
(Incorporating 
Inspection Area 2 of 
Estyn Framework) 

The Chair referred the Committee to the ‘Corporate Self-
Evaluation – Key Question 2 (Incorporating Inspection Area 
2 of Estyn Framework)’ report. 
 
Sue Walker then led the Committee in detail through the 
report. 
 
A Member stated that there had been a lot of improvements 
but felt that adequate was a fair judgement. 
 
Resolved that: 
 
The report be accepted. 

121   Forward Work 
Programme 2020/21 

The Chair referred the Committee to the Forward Work 
Programme 2020/2021. 
 
A Member then recommended that the Department’s 
response to Covid 19 be added to the schedule for the 15 
March 2021 Committee Meeting as it would be a good 
opportunity to reflect on a year of the pandemic. 
 
This recommendation was agreed by the Committee. 
 
Resolved subject to the foregoing that: 
 
The Draft Forward Work Programme be approved. 
 

122   Scrutiny Referrals, 
Feedback and Follow 
up Actions 

The Scrutiny Officer advised that there was no update on 
this item. 

123   Reflection and 
Evaluation of Meeting 

The Chair and the Committee reflected on the issues that 
had been considered at the Meeting 

124   Any other business 
deemed urgent by the 
Chair 

The Chair advised that there was no business deemed 
urgent. 

 
 

 

Page 61



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

MINUTES OF MEETING 
 

SCRUTINY : REGENERATION 
AND PUBLIC PROTECTION 

MEETING 
 

TUESDAY, 20TH OCTOBER, 2020 
 

 
PRESENT:  
 

Councillors   G Lewis (Chair) 
                     K Gibbs (Vice-Chair) 
 

 Councillors   M Colbran, L Davies and S Thomas 
  
 Cooptees: 

H Hopkins (Public) and M Ellis (Youth Forum Representative) 
 
Other Councillors in Attendance: 
G Thomas (Cabinet Member) 
 
Officers: 
A Owen (Interim Deputy Chief Executive), C Long (Economic 
Development & Strategic Tourism Manager), S Stephens 
(Housing) and M Purnell (Performance and Scrutiny Officer) 
 
M Morgan* (Democratic Services Officer), M Phillips 
(Democratic Services Officer) and M Edmunds (Democratic 
Services Officer) 

 

ITEM 
NO. 

AGENDA MATTER DECISION 

124   Apologies for Absence Apologies for absence were received from H Jackson Co-
opted Member. 

125   Declarations of Interest 
(including whipping 
declarations) 

No Declarations of Interest were made. 

Page 63

Agenda Item 5n



 
 
 
 
   

126   Housing and 
Homelessness 

The Chair referred the Committee to the ‘Housing and 
Homelessness’ report and welcomed Suzanne Stephens to 
the Meeting. 
 
Suzanne Stephens then led the Committee in detail through 
the report and also gave an update in relation to the Winter 
Night Shelter. 
 
The following questions were then raised by the Members 
on the report and were responded to in detail by Suzanne 
Stephens, Councillor G Thomas, Alyn Owen and Chris 
Long: 
 

 Explanation requested on Housing Allowances – 
Social and Private Landlords 

 Has the uplift in the Housing Allowance made any 
difference 

 How many are looking for Housing at the moment – 
How many are refusing engagement – Proposals 
for the Winter 

 Is there alternative funding in relation to the 
provision of a Winter Night Shelter – How are other 
Local Councils dealing with this 

 
Councillor G Thomas then updated the Committee in 
relation to a recent Meeting held with Welsh Government 
 

 Paragraph 4.4 – How many were accommodated in 
Chaplin’s – How many places will there be going 
forward as opposed to previously 

 Is there anything in the report that needs to be 
changed due to the Firebreak Lockdown 

 Paragraph 5.3 – The scale of the problem – How 
many of the households in temporary 
accommodation were Covid related – The impact 
on individuals and staff – The need to find 
additional accommodation  

 The effect on Tourism 

 Paragraph 5.10 – Overview on a Winter Night 
Shelter and extra accommodation requested – Will 
the accommodation mirror the services of the 
Winter Night Shelter 

 Staffing capacity in the Housing Department 

 The effect of Legislation from Welsh Government 
on priority need – The impact on the housing 
waiting list 

 If there is no Winter Night Shelter how will warm 
clothing, blankets etc be distributed 

 Police and Crime Commissioner Funding in relation 
to Anti-Social Behaviour  

 How to get the message out re- Anti-Social 
behaviour – Can Communications get the message 
out in relation to the perceptions of people 

 
Councillor G Thomas then updated the Committee in 
relation to summit Meetings that had been held and that a 
report and actions arising from these Meetings would be 
brought to the Scrutiny Committee 

Page 64



 
 
 
 
   

 
The Committee then agreed that an update report from 
these summit Meeting be considered at the Scrutiny 
Committee scheduled for 1 December 2020. 
 
The Chair then thanked Suzanne Stephens for the overview 
report to the Committee. 
 
Thanks were also conveyed to Suzanne Stevens for the 
work she had undertaken together with the work carried out 
by the Housing Department.  

127   Work Programme 
2020-2021 

The Chair referred the Committee to the Draft Forward 
Work Programme 2020/21. 
 
Reference was then made to the report on the Summit 
Meetings that had been agreed for inclusion at the 1 
December 2020 Meeting. 
 
The Chair also asked Alyn Owen for an overview on the 
Firebreak Lockdown and how it would impact on the 
Department. 
 
The Chair also referred to the need for a rounded view on 
Anti Social Behaviour and Homelessness and how Anti 
Social Behaviour connected with other issues. 
 
Resolved subject to the foregoing that: 
 
The Draft Forward Work Programme be approved.   
 
Councillor M Colbran left the Meeting at 3.43 pm. 

128   Scrutiny Referrals, 
Feedback and Follow 
Up Actions 

There was no update on this item. 

129   Reflection and 
Evaluation of Meeting 

The Chair and the Committee reflected on the issues that 
had been considered in the Meeting. 

130   Any Other Business 
deemed urgent by the 
Chair 

Self – Evaluation Questionnaire 
 
Maria Purnell advised the Committee that the 
Questionnaires would be distributed in the next few weeks 
with a return completion date of 30 November 2020 and 
outlined its content. 

 
 

 

Page 65



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 67

Agenda Item 6



Page 68



Civic Centre, Castle Street,  
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN 

 

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 
 

 
 

FULL COUNCIL REPORT 

 

 

 

 
 
 
To:   Mayor, Ladies and Gentlemen 
 

Gully Sucker Business Case 
 
 

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1  Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council Highways service manage the gully 

cleansing service within the County Borough. There are currently between 10,500 & 
12,000 gullies within Merthyr Tydfil that require routine maintenance to ensure that 
the drainage system functions effectively. Other items that require regular cleansing 
are cattle grids, beany blocks, and Aco drainage systems. The number of gullies 
increase every year due to new housing developments being built and adopted.  

 
1.2 The gully cleansing service is currently provided by Caerphilly County Borough 

Council at a cost of approx. £58k per year. 
 
1.3 On the 7th October 2020 Council approved the recommendation to progress Option 3 

of the business case, to provide an in-house gully service. 
 
1.4 The report sets out the cost of doing so and the associated anticipated timescales for 

introducing the in-house service. 
 

2.0 RECOMMENDATIONS that 
 
2.1 The proposal to set up an in-house gully sucker service based on the information 

presented at para 6.1 be approved. 
 
 
 
 

Date Written 19th October 2020 ** 

Report Author Darren Chaffe 

Service Area Neighbourhood Services – 
Highways  

Exempt/Non Exempt Non Exempt 

Committee Date 4th November 2020 

Page 69

Agenda Item 7



3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council Highways service manage the gully cleansing 

service within the County Borough. There are currently between 10,500 & 12,000 
gullies within Merthyr Tydfil that require routine maintenance to ensure that the 
drainage system functions effectively. Other items that require regular cleansing are 
cattle grids, beany blocks, and Aco drainage systems. The number of gullies 
increase every year due to new housing developments being built and adopted. 

 
3.2 As well as the maintenance programme the Gully machine identifies drainage 

issues, such as blocked gullies or pipes, incidents are identified and prioritised on a 
risk-based basis, and works are costed and planned for repair. 

 
3.3 In 2018, as part of a budget efficiency saving, Council agreed that the Gully 

cleansing service would be sub-contracted out to Caerphilly County Borough Council 
at a cost of £58k per year approx. The gullies and their immediate pipe connections 
are cleansed and emptied as part of a bi-annual (every 2 years) proactive 
maintenance programme. The contract with Caerphilly CBC requires us to give 6 
months notice of termination. 

 
 

4.0 THE GULLY SUCKER SERVICE TO BE PROVIDED 
 
4.1 The proposed service will increase the frequency of cleaning all gully’s in the County 

Borough to annually (currently bi-annually), and will have the benefit of being able to 
respond more quickly to any potential incidents, or blockages identified and give 
peace of mind to residents that the service will be more responsive.  

 
 

4.2 Staffing structure 
 

4.2.1 Two new staff members will need to be recruited & trained to operate the gully 
machine full time. Existing staff will also need to undertake the relevant 
training to operate the specialised equipment to cover for holidays and any 
sickness. Staff from other Neighbourhood Services Department’s will need to 
be trained to cover emergencies that may occur out of hours, as highways 
staff will be on a standby rota covering Winter Maintenance (6 months of the 
year) and Sewer standby (12 months). The gully machine training will involve 
daily & weekly maintenance checks, pre-shift checks, safe operating practices 
and high-pressure water jetting. 

 
4.3 Software 

 
There are currently a limited number of software systems that will help programme 
and manage gully cleansing services. One of the systems currently being looked at 
is KOREC - K-Gully, which is a full, end to end, gully cleansing, recording and 
reporting system. It combines a sophisticated tool for managing the cleaning 
programme, and for end clients, a high-quality record of the on-site work completed 
and includes: - 
 

Page 70



• Customisable data collection forms   
• Live device tracking for efficient emergency response  
• Wireless transfer of daily assignments  
• Client Log in for ‘real time’ access to progress  
• Wireless transfer of work completed  
• Full background mapping streaming service included (including OS 

Mastermap)   
• Full ‘off-line’ use support • Full history of all inspections maintained 

Intelligent   scheduling functionality  
• Daily Progress Reports • Live interactive map   
• Project Progress Reports • Public issue reporting module available 

 
 

This system has an installation cost of £2177.00 and annual licence charge of 
£5,000.00 p.a. 

 
 

4.4  Waste disposal 
 

We are currently in discussions with local waste disposal companies on taking our 
future gully waste. Accurate waste data is required as the tonnages contribute to our 
recycling targets. We are also exploring the option of creating reed beds within the 
County Borough in order to dispose of the waste ourselves, we will assess the cost 
effectiveness of this married against the timescales involved given the need for 
licences and infrastructure. The cost of waste disposal specified in para 6.2 below is 
based on disposal at Bryn Pica, which is where we disposed of gully waste when it 
was previously an in-house service, but we will continue to review the most cost-
effective means of disposing of our gully waste. 

 
 

5.0 TIMESCALE FOR INTRODUCTION OF THE IN-HOUSE SERVICE 
 
5.1 Since the business case was presented to last Council, the Fleet Transport Manager 

has set about exploring the most cost-effective means of providing an in-house gully 
sucker service. Procuring a gully sucker via contract hire would be a more efficient 
solution than leasing as it would include maintenance, repair, and tyre costs, as well 
as a replacement vehicle when repairs are being carried out. A further advantage of 
contract hire is that the gully sucker would be available within weeks, enabling us to 
introduce the in-house service sooner than anticipated once the 6 month notice 
period that we are required to serve on our current provider Caerphilly CBC has 
expired. Should Council agree the proposal, notice will be served on CCBC by the 6th 
November 2020. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 71



 
 

6.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
6.1 The financial implications of providing the gully sucking service in house are detailed 

below:- 
 

 

Staff costs 
  Post 1 - @ grade 3 
 

30,505 

Post 2 - @ grade 4 
 

35,246 

stand-by 
 

320 

call out 
 

1,036 

Total Staff cost (£)   67,107 

      

Vehicle Costs 
  Repairs / Maintenance included in Hire Contract 
 

0 

Tyres included in Hire Contract 
 

0 

Fuel 
 

9,645 

Contract Hire Costs (per year on 12 months rolling) 
 

38,220 

Total Vehicle Costs (£)   47,865 

      

Supplies & Services 
  Bayard Key 
 

3,550 

Water charge 
 

998 

Waste Disposal 
 

80,881 

Training / Licenses 
 

0 

K-Gully licenses Charge 
 

5,000 

PPE 
 

1,500 

Total Supplies & Services Cost (£)   91,929 

   Total Revenue Costs (£)   206,901 

   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 72



 
 
 

7.0 INTEGRATED IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
 
 

 Positive 
Impacts 

Negative 
Impacts 

Not 
Applicable  

1. Merthyr Tydfil Well-being 
Objectives 

  
2 of 4 0 of 4 2 of 4 

2. Sustainable Development 
Principles - How have you 
considered the five ways of 
working: 

 Long term 

 Prevention 

 Integration 

 Collaboration 

 Involvement 
 

5 of 5 0 of 5 0 of 5 

3. Protected Characteristics 
(including Welsh Language) 

 
0 of 10 0 of 10 10 of 10 

4. Biodiversity 
 

1 of 1 0 of 1 0 of 1 

Summary:  
The main positive impacts are improving frequency of cleansing gully's in the County Borough and 
making people feel secure in their property, knowing that MTCBC have reacted and responded to 
the Storm Dennis flooding.  
 
 

 
 
 
JUDITH JONES 
CHIEF OFFICER PLANNING & 
NEIGHBOURHOOD SERVICES 

COUNCILLOR DAVID HUGHES 
CABINET MEMBER FOR PLANNING & 

NEIGHBOURHOOD SERVICES 
 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location 

 
 

  

 

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution?  
 

NO 

 
Consultation has been undertaken with the Corporate Management Team in respect 

of each proposal(s) and recommendation(s) set out in this report. 

Page 73



This page is intentionally left blank



Civic Centre, Castle Street,  
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN 

 

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 
 

 

 
FULL COUNCIL - INFORMATION REPORT 

 

 

 

 

To:   Mayor, Ladies and Gentlemen 

School Transport – Edwardsville School 
 
 

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 On the 23rd October 2019 a report was approved at Council as part of the Authority’s 

Sustainability Work. The approval was for a consultation exercise be undertaken to 
assess a proposed safe walking route between Pentwyn, Quakers Yard and 
Edwardsville School with a report to be brought back to Full Council to consider 
recommendations. 

 
1.2 An error has since been identified in the recommendation requiring the matter to be 

brought back to Council following consultation. On the 25th March 2015 Cabinet had 
approved that delegated Authority be given to the then Director of Customer 
Services (now Chief Officer Neighbourhood Service) with the relevant portfolio 
member to assess any proposed home to school walking route and decide whether 
the route could be deemed available. 

 
1.3 In order to provide consistency with other previously assessed routes the proposed 

walking route between Pentwyn, Quakers Yard and Edwardsville School will now be 
assessed and determined by the Chief Officer of Neighbourhood Services in 
conjunction with the relevant portfolio member. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Date Written 6th October 2020 

Report Author Paul Lewis** 

Service Area Transport 

Exempt/Non Exempt Non Exempt 

Committee Date 4th November 2020 

Page 75

Agenda Item 8



2.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 On the 23rd October 2019 a report was approved at Council as part of the Authority’s 

Sustainability Workstream. The approval was for a consultation exercise to be 
undertaken to assess a proposed safe walking route between Pentwyn, Quakers 
Yard and Edwardsville School with a report to be brought back to Full Council to 
consider recommendations. 
 

2.2 An error has since been identified in the recommendation requiring the matter to be 
brought back to Council following consultation. On the 25th March 2015 Cabinet had 
approved that delegated Authority be given to the then Director of Customer 
Services (now Chief Officer Neighbourhood Service) with the relevant portfolio 
member to assess any proposed home to school walking route and decide whether 
the route could be deemed available. 
 

2.3 In order to provide consistency with other previously assessed routes the proposed 
walking route between Pentwyn, Quakers Yard and Edwardsville School will now be 
assessed under delegated authority by the Chief Officer of Neighbourhood Services 
in conjunction with the relevant portfolio member. 

 
 
 
  

3.0 INTEGRATED IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
 

 Positive Impacts Negative Impacts Not Applicable  

1. Merthyr Tydfil Well-being Objectives 

  
0 of 4 0 of 4 4 of 4 

2. Sustainable Development Principles - 

How have you considered the five ways 

of working: 

 Long term 

 Prevention 

 Integration 

 Collaboration 

 Involvement 

 

0 of 5 0 of 5 5 of 5 

3. Protected Characteristics (including Welsh 

Language) 
0 of 10 0 of 10 10 of 10 

Page 76



 

4. Biodiversity 

 
0 of 1 0 of 1 1 of 1 

Summary: 

This report provides information to Elected Members regarding the current position of the project and 

that a decision is to be made under delegated authority.  As such the information in this report has neither 

a positive nor negative impact on our well-being objectives, five ways of working, protected 

characteristics, nor biodiversity. 

The IIA will be updated and applied throughout the lifetime of the project, this includes being completed 

prior to delegated decisions are made. 

 
 
ALYN OWEN  
DEPUTY CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

COUNCILLOR GERAINT THOMAS 
CABINET MEMBER REGENERATION 

AND PUBLIC PROTECTION 
 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location 

Assessment of Walking 
Routes Cabinet Report 

 
 

25.03.2015 Archive 

 

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution?  
 

No 

 
 

Consultation has been undertaken with the Corporate Management Team in respect 
of each proposal(s) and recommendation(s) set out in this report.  

Page 77



This page is intentionally left blank



Civic Centre, Castle Street,  
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN 

 

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 
 

 
 

FULL COUNCIL - INFORMATION REPORT 

 

 

 

 
 
To:   Mayor, Ladies and Gentlemen 
 

Period Dignity 
 
1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 This report provides information on how the grant from the Welsh Government for 

‘Period Dignity’ has been used and outlines plans for the future spend of this money. 
 

 

2.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 

2.1 There has been recognition by Welsh Government that it is unacceptable that some 
young females cannot afford to buy essential feminine hygiene products when they 
need them, and as such, Welsh Government allocated funding to address this 
inequality. 
 

2.2 In the financial year 2019/20 Welsh Government allocated a total grant spend of 
£43,847. However, this was then reduced by approximately 50% due to COVID 19. 
This meant that there was a capital grant of £21,924 for Merthyr Tydfil for the 
maintenance and installation of equipment, and for the purchase of sanitary products 
for female pupils in school. There was also a revenue grant to the value of £4,376 for 
maintaining sanitary ware stock in schools. This gave us a total grant spend of 
£26,300. 

 

3.0 EVALUATION OF CURRENT PRACTICE 
 

3.1 As a result of using the grant all schools have been provided with vending machines 
stocked with sanitary products, which are free to female pupils. Through the grant a 
three-year maintenance contract has been provided and supplies have been re-
stocked. This means that pupils can access these products in the privacy of the 
toilets without having to notify a staff member.  

Date Written 7th October 2020 

Report Author Sarah Bowen 

Service Area Learning 

Exempt/Non Exempt Non-Exempt 

Committee Date 4th November 2020 

Page 79

Agenda Item 9



 
3.2 In April this year, Welsh Government announced £2.3 million funding to be allocated 

to Local Authorities in Wales for the coming year to provide period products in 
schools. The funding criteria stipulated that 50% of this funding should be used to 
purchase eco-friendly period products (i.e. reusable products and/or plastic free 
products) to allow maximum choice for the users. 
 

3.3 There are clear benefits to providing an option of reusable period products.  
Primarily, it provides girls with choice about how to manage their periods. There is 
also an environmental benefit.  Disposable sanitary products can contain up to 90% 
plastic and can make a notable contribution to our plastic litter problem.  Providing 
the option of using reusable products can help to address the impact that disposable 
products are having on our environment and support the action we are taking to 
reduce the volume of single use plastics.  Encouraging a move away from 
disposable options towards reusable and plastic free options is a relatively small 
measure, but which could have an important environmental impact.  Furthermore, 
the availability of reusable products can have a positive impact on tackling period 
poverty as their use saves money in the longer term. 
 

3.4 To support our young females in their choices we arranged for an Environmentalist 
Campaigner to visit some of our schools earlier this year to speak with some of our 
female leaners.  The groups discussed the benefits of using eco-friendly products, 
how the products can be used, their maintenance, and what kind of information 
should be readily available in the toilets.  Education in this area is crucial to enable 
the increased usage of these eco-friendly products. 
 

3.5 There is a broad range of information online with regards to the eco-friendly sanitary 
products that are available and many come with guidance, while some also have 
support helplines.  Welsh Government in conjunction with Eco Schools and Keep 
Wales Tidy have provided resources for schools which will promote open discussion 
with young people and aim to help break down the social stigma and taboos around 
the subject.  These resources are available on Hwb, the Digital Learning for Wales 
website, to which all schools have access.  They can be accessed on Hwb  
https://hwb.gov.wales/repository/resource/686e315c-2f6c-428e-8425-
2740bcf3da74/en 

 
In addition to this, the supplier of the re-useable products that have been purchased 
for our schools, has provided all schools with leaflets to share and posters to display.  
 

3.6 The Welsh Government is setting up a cross-Government group which will look at 
how the funding has been allocated and spent and where any improvements need to 
be made as well as options for sustainable provision of products. 
 

3.7 In addition to providing eco-products for schools, these have been provided to 8 
Youth Service Community venues and the Youth Forum. Where required during the 
spring lockdown, they were also delivered to some Children Looked After (CLA), 
Children With Disabilities (CWD), those eligible for Free School Meals (eFSMs) and 
to our English as an Additional Language (EAL) and Gypsy Traveller (GT) 
communities. 

  

Page 80

https://hwb.gov.wales/repository/resource/686e315c-2f6c-428e-8425-2740bcf3da74/en
https://hwb.gov.wales/repository/resource/686e315c-2f6c-428e-8425-2740bcf3da74/en


 

4.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 

4.1 There is a requirement in the terms and conditions of the funding for 2020/21 that 
50% of the grant be spent on re-usable products.  To date we have spent 38% on 
such products.  Further expenditure for the cost of sanitary products, including more 
environmentally friendly products, will be met by the funding allocation from Welsh 
Government for the financial year 2020/21, ensuring that we reach this target.   
 

5.0 INTEGRATED IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
 

 Positive 
Impacts 

Negative 
Impacts 

Not 
Applicable  

1. Merthyr Tydfil Well-being 
Objectives 

  
 4 of 4  0 of 4  0 of 4 

2. Sustainable Development 
Principles - How have you 
considered the five ways of 
working: 

 Long term 

 Prevention 

 Integration 

 Collaboration 

 Involvement 
 

 5 of 5 0 of 5 0 of 5 

3. Protected Characteristics 
(including Welsh Language) 

 
9 of 10 0 of 10 1 of 10 

4. Biodiversity 
 

1 of 1 0 of 1 0 of 1 

Summary: 
 
The main positive impacts against: 
 

 The Well-being Objectives are that the proposal would provide young female pupils 
with free sanitary products. This would allow for improved wellbeing, dignity and 
outcomes.  

 The Sustainable Development Principles are that the proposal would safeguard the 
long-term health and educational needs of young females. The proposal seeks the 
engagement of young females and outside providers.  

 The Protected Characteristics and Welsh language are that the proposal will provide 
support for all young females with protected characteristics and will promote the use of 
the Welsh language where appropriate. 

 Biodiversity are that the proposal would encourage awareness raising and 
understanding about becoming ethical and responsible citizens.  

 
There are no negative impacts as a result of this proposal.  
 

Page 81



 
 
 
 
 
SUE WALKER 
CHIEF OFFICER (LEARNING) 

COUNCILLOR LISA MYTTON 
CABINET MEMBER FOR LEARNING 

 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location 

 
 

 Period poverty: capital 
funding allocation for 

2020/21 
 

 

 
 

April 2020  
 
 
 
 

 

 
 

Education and Accountancy 
 

 

 

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution?  
 

No 

 
Consultation has been undertaken with the Corporate Management Team in respect 

of each proposal(s) and recommendation(s) set out in this report. 
  

Page 82


	Agenda
	4 The Cyfarthfa Plan 2020 – 2040
	5a Full Council: 07/10/2020
	5b Cabinet: 07/10/2020
	5c Rights of Way: 30/09/2020
	5d Planning, Regulatory and Licensing: 21/10/2020
	5e Audit: 12/10/2020
	5f Scrutiny: Governance, Performance, Business Change and Corporate Services: 22/09/2020
	5g Scrutiny: Governance, Performance, Business Change and Corporate Services: 13/10/2020
	5h Scrutiny: Social Services: 15/09/2020
	5i Scrutiny: Social Services: 06/10/2020
	5j Scrutiny: Neighbourhood Services, Planning and Countryside: 28/09/2020
	5k Scrutiny: Regeneration and Public Protection: 29/09 2020
	5l Scrutiny: Learning and LGES: 21/09/2020
	5m Scrutiny: Learning and LGES: 19/10/2020
	5n Scrutiny: Regeneration and Public Protection: 20/10/2020
	6 Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council's Response to the Current Financial Assistance for the Business Community
	7 Gully Sucker Business Case
	8 School Transport – Edwardsville School
	9 Period Poverty

